
Community Development Authority
Meeting Agenda - September 23, 2020

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
4:30 PM

Wednesday, September 23, 2020

*
           Members of the media or the public may participate in the open session portion of this agenda by calling 1 (571)

317-3112, access code 583-758-165.  All participants' phones will be muted. Attendance at the meeting in person will
be limited.  If you would like to provide comments for the any of the items on the agenda, please submit those to
christensenj@beloitwi.gov by noon on Wednesday, September 23, 2020.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

3. MINUTES
3.a. Consideration of the minutes of the August 26, 2020 regular meeting and the September 15,

2020 Special Meeting of the Community Development Authority 
Attachment

4. BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY
4.a. Presentation of the August Activity Report (Cole)

Attachment
4.b. Presentation of the July Financial Report (Cole)

Attachment
4.c. Consideration of Resolution 2020-13 Approving Revision to the 2018 Capital Fund Budget

(Cole)
Attachment

5. COMMUNITY AND HOUSING SERVICES
5.a. Resolution 2020-14 recommending approval of the 2021 Community Development Block Grant

(CDBG) budget and 2021 Annual Action Plan (Downing)
Attachment

5.b. Consideration of Resolution 2020-15 recommending approval of the 2021 HOME Investment
Partnership Program (HOME) Budget (Christensen)
Attachment

6. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696705/Combined_8-26___9-15-2020_CDA_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/695379/4a-August_Activity_Report-jc_edits.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696667/4a_July_Financial_Report_Combined.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/693357/4c_2018_CFP_Budget_Revision_Combined.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/697155/5a-CDBG_Budget_and_Plan.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/696632/5b-HOME_Budget.pdf


Beloit Community Development Authority
Meeting Agenda - September 23, 2020

Page | 2

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

2



Page 1 of 2 

 

Minutes 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
100 State Street, Beloit WI  53511 
August 26, 2020 
4:30 P.M. 
 
The regular meeting of the City of Beloit Community Development Authority was held on 
Wednesday, August 26, 2020 in the Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Ellison at 4:32 PM. 
Present:  Commissioners Ellison, Douglas, Gorman, Roland; Councilor Forbeck  
Absent:  Commissioner Hyler; Councilor Leavy 
Staff Present: Julie Christensen, Clinton Cole, and Ann Purifoy 
 

2. Public Comment 
None 
 

3. Consideration of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on July 22, 2020 and the 
special meeting held on July 31, 2020 
Motion was made by Councilor Forbeck and seconded by Commissioner Roland to approve 
the minutes of the Regular Meeting held on July 22, 2020 and the Special Meeting held on 
July 31, 2020.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. Beloit Housing Authority 
a. Presentation of the July Activity Report 

Clinton Cole, Beloit Housing Authority Director, gave a brief summary of the report. 
 

b. Presentation of the June Financial Report  
Clinton Cole gave a brief summary of the report.   
 

c. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2020-10, Authorizing the Beloit Housing 
Authority to apply for a Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Grant  
Clinton Cole gave a brief summary of the report. 
 
Commissioner Roland moved and Commissioner Gorman seconded a motion to 
approve Resolution 2020-10.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

d. Review and Consideration of Resolution 2020-11, Authorizing the Beloit Housing 
Authority to Apply for Public Housing Operating Fund Set-Aside Funding 
Clinton Cole gave a brief summary of the report.   

 

3



Page 2 of 2 

 

Philip Gorman asked if there were any strings attached to receiving the funds. Clint 
indicated that the main requirement was to work with the HUD Milwaukee field office 
to develop a plan to remain financially solvent.   
 
Councilor Forbeck moved and Commissioner Gorman seconded a motion to approve 
Resolution 2020-11.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. Adjournment 
Motion was made by Councilor Forbeck and seconded by Commissioner Roland to adjourn 
into a workshop to hear presentations from Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
applicants for the 2021 CDBG funding cycle at 4:30 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, Ann Purifoy  

4



Page 1 of 1 

Minutes 
Beloit Community Development Authority 
100 State Street, Beloit WI  53511 
September 15, 2020 
5:00 P.M. 

The special meeting of the City of Beloit Community Development Authority was held on 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 in the Forum of Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Meeting was called to order by Councilor Leavy at 5:02 p.m. 
Present:  Commissioners Gorman and Roland; Councilors Leavy and Forbeck  
Absent:  Commissioners Ellison and Douglas 

2. Public Comment
None 

3. Beloit Housing Authority 
a. The Community Development Authority will adjourn into closed session pursuant to 

§19.85(1)(e), Wis. Stats., for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing 
of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, in 
particular to discuss the potential sale of 912 Clary Street.  The Community 
Development Authority may reconvene and take action on an item discussed in closed 
session.  

Commissioner Roland moved and Councilor Forbeck seconded a motion to adjourn 
into closed session at 5:03 p.m. Motion carried, voice vote. 

Commissioner Gorman moved and Councilor Forbeck seconded a motion to reconvene 
into open session at 5:06 p.m.  Motion carried, voice vote. 

Commissioner Roland moved and Councilor Forbeck seconded approval of Resolution 
2020-12.  Motion carried, roll call vote.

4. Adjournment
Motion made by Councilor Forbeck and seconded by Commissioner Gorman to adjourn at 
5:07 p.m. Motion carried, voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, Clinton Cole  

5



REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

Agenda 
Number: 

4a 

Topic: August Activity Report 

Date: September 23, 2020 

Presenter: Clinton Cole Division: Beloit Housing Authority 

Overview/Background Information 

Each month, the Housing Authority provides an activity report to the Community Development Authority.  This report is 
for information only.   

Key Issues 

Public Housing:  
At the end of this reporting period, there were no public housing vacancies. 16 annual and three interim certifications 
were completed.  Due to HUD guidance in response to the COVID-19 pandemic to limit the spread of the virus and 
protect the safety of BHA staff and residents, no annual inspections were conducted in August.  
Section 8: 
508 vouchers were housed on August 31, 2020, with nine voucher holders either searching for units or waiting for passed 
inspections. Five portable vouchers were paid by BHA, and seven port-in vouchers were administered. One initial 
inspection was completed during this reporting period, as we only inspected vacant units.  The Housing Specialists 
completed 37 annual and 21 interim recertifications during this reporting period. 
HQS Inspections: 
Beginning in September, the BHA Inspector began scheduling and conducting Housing Quality Standards inspections of 
occupied Section 8 units to ensure that the units continue to meet City code as well as HUD HQS guidelines.  The BHA 
Inspector is utilizing personal protective equipment (PPE) to ensure their safety, as well as the safety of the families 
occupying the units.  The HQS inspection appointment letter was revised to encourage residents to contact the 
Inspector to reschedule their appointment should they display any symptoms of COVID-19.  A COVID-19 information 
sheet from the Center for Disease Control was also included with the appointment letters.  In addition, residents are 
advised to contact the BHA Inspector if they display any symptoms of COVID-19 up to 14 days after their inspection 
appointment was conducted.   

Conformance with Strategic Plan 

Approval of this action would conform with the stated purpose of the following strategic goal: 

 Goal #1 – Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods 

 Goal #2 – Create and Sustain a High Performing Organization 

 Goal #3 – Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth 

 Goal #4 – Create and Sustain a High Quality of Life 

 Goal #5 – Create and Sustain High Quality Infrastructure and Connectivity 

 Goal #6 – Create and Sustain a Positive Image, Enhance Communications and Engage the Community 

Sustainability 

(If applicable, briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and natural 
environment.  Consider whether the policy or program will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels, reduce dependence on chemicals and other 
manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature, reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems, and/or meet the 
hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Write N/A if not applicable)   N/A 

 

Action Required/Recommendation 

No action required.  Information only. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact 

All fiscal/budget impacts are noted in the report. 

Attachments 

August Activity Report 

6



 

     Beloit Community Development Authority 
Activity Report to Board for August 2020 

 

PUBLIC HOUSING 
Total Public Housing Units 131 Units  
 Occupied on 8/31/2020  131 Units 100% Occupancy 
 Vacancies on 8/31/2020     0 Units 0% Vacancy 

 
Vacancies by Type 

Elderly 0 Units 100% Occupancy  
Family 0 Units 100% Occupancy 

 
Public Housing Inspections 
There were no inspections completed during this reporting period.  
 
Public Housing Activities 

Annual Recertifications 16 

Interim Recertifications 3 

Tenant notices to Vacate   
*Not due to eviction  

0 

New Tenants 1 

Transfers 0 

Lease Terminations 0 

Possible Program Violations 0 

Evictions 0 

 
Public Housing Briefings 

Number Notified 0 

Number Briefed 0 

 
 
SECTION 8 PROGRAM 
 
Total Section 8 Vouchers 598 Vouchers 

 
 Total Under Lease on 8/31/2020 502 Vouchers 84% Utilization 
 Total Portable Vouchers Paid 5 Vouchers 
 Total Port Out* 5 Vouchers 
 Total Port In* 7 Vouchers 
 
 * Port Out – Not absorbed by other Housing Authorities; paid by Beloit Housing Authority 
 * Port In – Portable vouchers administered by BHA but paid by other Housing Authorities 
 

7



 

Section 8 Inspections 
The BHA Inspector completed one initial inspection during this reporting period. 
 
Section 8 Activities  

New Participants 0 

Annual Recertifications 37 

Interim Recertifications 21 

Abatements 4 

Unit Transfers 3 

Possible Program Violations 2 

End of Program 5 

Port outs 0 

 
Section 8 Briefings 

Number Notified 0 

Number Briefed 0 

 
 
APPLICATIONS ON WAITING LIST    

Public Housing East 44 

Public Housing West 34 

Parker Bluff 131 

Section 8 Program 202 

 
 
0 Applicants removed for Repayment Default 
0 Applicants removed for unreported income 
0 Applicants removed for unauthorized occupants 
0  Applicants removed for debts owed 
Some applicants are on both lists, some are not 
Section 8 waiting list opened 4/4/11       

 

8



 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 

Agenda 
Number: 

4b 

Topic: July 2020 Financial Report 

Date: September 23, 2020 

Presenter: Clinton Cole Division: Beloit Housing Authority 

Overview/Background Information 

Each month, the Housing Authority provides a financial report to the Community Development Authority. This report is 
for information only.   

Key Issues 

Attached is the Beloit Housing Authority Financial Statement prepared by the BHA Financial Assistant for the month 
ending July 31, 2020. 
 
Through the month of July, the Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) program income was $393,417.70 and the LIPH 
expenses were $321,176.46.  There was a surplus of $72,241.24 in LIPH. 
 
Through the month of July, Inflows of revenue from LIPH Grants total $114,273.58 and related grant expenses total 
$114,273.58. 
   
Through the month of July, the Project Based Voucher (PBV) program income was $63,778.13 and the expenses were 
$92,128.18.  The PBV had a deficit of $(28,350.05).  The deficit is the result of the proceeds from the sale of Project 
Based Unit 852 8th Street being transferred to the LIPH Fund. 
 
Through the month of July, Phase 1 program income was $189,311.61 and the expenses were $158,618.96.  Phase 1 had 
a surplus of $30,692.65.  Of this surplus, $3.07 is the Housing Authority’s portion. 
 
Through the month of July, Phase 2 program income was $211,604.48 and the expenses were $184,619.69.  Phase 2 had 
a surplus of $26,984.79.  Of this surplus, $2.70 is the Housing Authority’s portion. 
 
Through the month of July, the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program income was $1,847,615.44 and expenses were 
$1,851,782.74.  The HCV program had a deficit of $(4,167.30).  The difference in the bottom line amount from June 
2020 to July 2020 is a result of the BHA receiving $49,727 less in HAP funding compared to June 2020.   
 
Debts owed BHA collected through July 2020:  Total $13,931.73  
SDC Program:  $12,236.74  Repayments:  $1,694.99 
 

Conformance with Strategic Plan 

Approval of this agreement would conform with the stated purpose of the following strategic goal: 

 Goal #1 – Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods 

 Goal #2 – Create and Sustain a High Performing Organization 

 Goal #3 – Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth 

 Goal #4 – Create and Sustain a High Quality of Life 

 Goal #5 – Create and Sustain High Quality Infrastructure and Connectivity 

 Goal #6 – Create and Sustain a Positive Image, Enhance Communications and Engage the Community 

Sustainability 

(If applicable, briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and natural 
environment.  Consider whether the policy of program will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels, reduce dependence on chemicals and other 
manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature, reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems, and/or meet the 
hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Write N/A if not applicable) 

N/A 

9



 

Action Required/Recommendation 

No action required.  Information only. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact 

All fiscal/budget impacts are noted in the report. 

Attachments 

July 2020 Financial Report 

 

 

10



YTD Actual Annual Board Approved Budget

Income Approved YTD LIPH LIPH Grants PBV Total LIPH/PBV Total

1 Dwelling Rental 24,782.92        18,709.00     18,709.00         42,485.00               42,485.00       

2 Excess Utilities -                   -                    -                  

3 Interest on Unrestricted Fund Investments -                   42.26                  42.26                -                  

4 Income - Transfer In from Other Funds -                   66,954.25           66,954.25         -                  

5 Other Income - Tenants 875.00             -                    1,500.00                 1,500.00         

6 HAP Fraud Recovery & FSS Forfeitures -                   -                    -                  

7 Other Income - Bad Debt Collections -                   12,566.94           12,566.94         -                  

8 Other Income - Laundry/Copy Fees/Misc 67,028.50        9,796.25             9,796.25           114,906.00             114,906.00     

9 Other Income - CFP  Operation Money 40,833.33        -                    70,000.00               70,000.00       

10 Other Income - Sale of Asset Gain/Loss 70,000.00        45,069.13     45,069.13         120,000.00             120,000.00     

11 Admin Fees Earned - HUD -                   -                    -                  

12 Incoming Billable Admin Fees/Oper Sub -                   -                    -                  

13 ROSS/CFP Grant 85,166.67        114,273.58    114,273.58       146,000.00             146,000.00     

14 HAP Subsidy -                   -                    -                  

15 Operating Subsidy 226,018.33      304,058.00         304,058.00       387,460.00             387,460.00     

Total Income 514,704.75     393,417.70        114,273.58   63,778.13     571,469.41       882,351.00             882,351.00     

Expenses Approved YTD LIPH LIPH Grant PBV Total LIPH/PBV Total

Administrative Expenses

16 Admin Salaries 93,056.25        43,595.96           4,662.12        4,093.30       52,351.38         159,525.00             159,525.00     

17 FSS Coordinator Admin Salaries -                   27,329.05      27,329.05         -                  

18 Admin Employee Benefits 37,354.92        18,692.67           1,701.09       20,393.76         64,037.00               64,037.00       

19 FSS Coordinator Admin Benefits -                   9,805.19        9,805.19           -                  

20 Advertising & Marketing -                   -                    -                  

21 Legal 145.83             -                    250.00                    250.00            

22 Staff Training 7,291.67          1,900.00        1,900.00           12,500.00               12,500.00       

23 Travel 145.83             39.96                  39.96                250.00                    250.00            

24 Accounting Consultants 4,935.00          1,997.00             440.00          2,437.00           8,460.00                 8,460.00         

25 Audit Fee 5,250.00          -                    9,000.00                 9,000.00         

26 Telephone 3,192.00          826.70                826.70              5,472.00                 5,472.00         

27 Postage 1,251.25          1,196.65             1,196.65           2,145.00                 2,145.00         

28 Office Supplies 1,820.00          835.61                835.61              3,120.00                 3,120.00         

29 Memberships & Publications 465.50             430.69                430.69              798.00                    798.00            

30 Bank Fees -                   -                    -                  

31 Computer Maintenance -                   -                    -                  

32 Copier Expenses 1,642.08          1,251.82             1,251.82           2,815.00                 2,815.00         

33 Office Equipment Maintenance -                   -                    -                  

34 Postage Machine -                   -                    -                  

35 Software Maintenance 3,645.83          3,065.34             3,065.34           6,250.00                 6,250.00         

36 Outgoing Portable Admin Fees -                   -                    -                  

37 Sundry Administration/Compliance Fees 291.67             618.22                554.81          1,173.03           500.00                    500.00            

38 Port-In HAP Expense -                   -                    -                  

39 Management Fees -                   -                    -                  

40 Eviction & Collection Agent Fees 1,633.33          -                    2,800.00                 2,800.00         

41 HAP Expense (net fraud recovery to HUD) -                   -                    -                  

HAP Overfunding (Underfunding) -                   -                  

Consolidated 2020 Budget Report for LIPH/PBV - July 2020

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 LIPH PBV Page 1 of 12 11



Maintenance Expenses -                   

42 Maintenance Salaries 8,059.92          5,430.21             607.91          6,038.12           13,817.00               13,817.00       

43 Casual Labor - Maintenance -                   -                    -                  

44 Maintenance Benefits 1,885.92          1,729.19             200.37          1,929.56           3,233.00                 3,233.00         

45 Maintenance Materials & Supplies 2,770.83          151.89                895.00           88.60            1,135.49           4,750.00                 4,750.00         

46    Plumbing Supplies -                   -                    -                  

47    Locks, Locksets & Keys -                   -                    -                  

48    Electrical Supplies -                   -                    -                  

49    Painting Supplies -                   -                    -                  

50    Cleaning Supplies -                   122.99                122.99              -                  

51    Equipment Repair Parts -                   -                    -                  

52 Maintenance Contracted Services 4,491.67          1,534.49             1,364.00       2,898.49           7,700.00                 7,700.00         

53 Refuse Removal Services -                   -                    -                  

54 Plumbing Repair Services 437.50             653.00          653.00              750.00                    750.00            

55 Heating/AC Repair Services 291.67             2,400.00       2,400.00           500.00                    500.00            

56 Electric Repair Service 145.83             50.00                  200.39          250.39              250.00                    250.00            

57 Window Repair Service -                   -                    -                  

58 Automotive Repairs/Fuel -                   735.93                735.93              -                  

59 Elevator Repair & Maintenance 1,166.67          -                    2,000.00                 2,000.00         

60 Pest Control Services -                   -                    -                  

61 Cable TV -                   -                    -                  

62 Answering Service -                   4,149.38             4,149.38           -                  

63 Misc Contracts -                   -                    -                  

64 Clean/Paint Units 233.33             -                    400.00                    400.00            

Utilities Expenses -                   

65 Water/Sewer 1,254.17          622.56                195.76          818.32              2,150.00                 2,150.00         

66 Electricity 3,791.67          3,913.76             317.31          4,231.07           6,500.00                 6,500.00         

67 Natural Gas 1,750.00          859.68                538.58          1,398.26           3,000.00                 3,000.00         

Other Operating Expenses -                   

68 Protective Services Contract 24,150.00        11,087.56           11,087.56         41,400.00               41,400.00       

69 Insurance 5,248.25          4,429.45             1,651.62       6,081.07           8,997.00                 8,997.00         

70 PILOT -                   221.44          221.44              -                  

71 Compensated Absences -                   -                    -                  

72 Collection Losses -                   -                    -                  

73 Replacement Reserves & Debt Pmt-Princ -                   50,524.55      50,524.55         -                  

74 Other General Expense/Asset Mgmt Fees 220,487.75      213,808.75         9,945.75       223,754.50       377,979.00             377,979.00     

75 Casualty Losses - Non Capitalized -                   -                    -                  

76 Capital Expenditures 43,166.67        19,157.67      19,157.67         74,000.00               74,000.00       

77 Transfer In / Out -                   66,954.25     66,954.25         -                  

Total Expense 481,453.00     321,176.46        114,273.58   92,128.18     527,578.22       825,348.00             -                  825,348.00     

Net Income/(Loss): 72,241.24           -                 (28,350.05)    43,891.19         

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 LIPH PBV Page 2 of 12 12



 BHA YTD 

Actual 

 LIPH

Grants

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Over (Under) 

Income

Dwelling Rent/Utilities 18,709.00    42,485.00         44.04% (23,776.00)         

Interest on Investments 42.26            -                     0.00% 42.26                  

Other Income 134,386.57  306,406.00       43.86% (172,019.43)       

HUD Admin Fees -                     -                       

HUD Grants/Subsidies 304,058.00  114,273.58  533,460.00       78.42% (115,128.42)       

Total Income 457,195.83  114,273.58  882,351.00       (310,881.59)       

Expenses

 BHA YTD 

Actual 

 LIPH

Grants

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Under (Over) 

Administrative

Salaries/Benefits 68,083.02    41,796.36    223,562.00       49.15% 113,682.62        

Office Expenses 6,939.64      1,900.00      42,495.00         20.80% 33,655.36           

Office Contracted Services 4,317.16      11,865.00         36.39% 7,547.84             

Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd -                     -                       

Housing Assistance Pmts -                     -                       

HAP Payments Port In

Maintenance

Salaries/Benefits 7,967.68      17,050.00         46.73% 9,082.32             

Materials & Supplies 363.48          895.00          4,750.00           26.49% 3,491.52             

Maintenance Contracts 11,087.19    11,600.00         95.58% 512.81                

Utilities 6,447.65      11,650.00         55.34% 5,202.35             

Other Operating

Protective Services 11,087.56    41,400.00         26.78% 30,312.44           

Insurance 6,081.07      8,997.00           67.59% 2,915.93             

PILOT 221.44          -                     0.00% (221.44)               

Other Operating Expenses 290,708.75  69,682.22    451,979.00       79.74% 91,588.03           

Total Expenses 413,304.64  114,273.58  825,348.00       297,769.78        

Net Admin Income (Loss) 43,891.19    -                

Net HAP Income (Loss)

Total YTD Income (Loss) 43,891.19    -                

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

7/31/2020

LIPH/PBV

13



YTD Actual Annual Board Approved Budget

Income Approved YTD Phase 1 Phase 1 Total Phase 1 Total
1 Dwelling Rental 67,085.08             42,084.42             42,084.42             115,003.00             115,003.00     

2 Excess Utilities -                        -                        -                  

3 Interest on Unrestricted Fund Investments 11.67                    180.67                  180.67                  20.00                      20.00              

4 Income - Transfer In from Other Funds -                        63,718.50             63,718.50             -                  

5 Other Income - Tenants -                        9,144.18               9,144.18               -                  

6 HAP Fraud Recovery & FSS Forfeitures -                        -                        -                  

7 Other Income - Bad Debt Collections -                        37.47                    37.47                    -                  

8 Other Income - Laundry/Copy Fees/Misc -                        -                        -                  

9 Other Income - CFP  Operation Money -                        -                        -                  

10 Other Income - Sale of Asset Gain/Loss -                        -                        -                  

11 Admin Fees Earned - HUD -                        -                        -                  

12 Incoming Billable Admin Fees/Oper Sub 81,666.67             74,146.37             74,146.37             140,000.00             140,000.00     

13 ROSS/CFP Grant -                        

14 HAP Subsidy -                        -                        -                  

15 Operating Subsidy -                        -                        -                  

Total Income 148,763.42           189,311.61           189,311.61           255,023.00             255,023.00     

Expenses Approved YTD Phase 1 Phase 1 Total Phase 1 Total
Administrative Expenses

16 Admin Payroll Expenses 39,533.08             43,431.14             43,431.14             67,771.00               67,771.00       

17 FSS Coordinator Admin Salaries -                        -                        -                  

18 FSS Coordinator Admin Benefits -                        -                        -                  

19 Advertising & Marketing 29.17                    -                        50.00                      50.00              

20 Legal 583.33                  -                        1,000.00                 1,000.00         

21 Staff Training -                        -                        -                  

22 Travel -                        -                        -                  

23 Accounting Consultants 4,666.67               1,970.00               1,970.00               8,000.00                 8,000.00         

24 Audit Fee 7,000.00               10,600.00             10,600.00             12,000.00               12,000.00       

25 Telephone -                        -                        -                  

26 Postage -                        -                        -                  

27 Office Supplies 87.50                    -                        150.00                    150.00            

28 Memberships & Publications -                        -                        -                  

29 Bank Fees -                        22.40                    22.40                    -                  

30 Computer Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

31 Copier Expenses -                        -                        -                  

32 Office Equipment Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

33 Postage Machine -                        -                        -                  

34 Software Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

35 Outgoing Portable Admin Fees -                        -                        -                  

36 Sundry Administration/Compliance Fees 2,333.33               4,385.73               4,385.73               4,000.00                 4,000.00         

37 Port-In HAP Expense -                        -                        -                  

38 Management Fees 2,333.33               2,142.92               2,142.92               4,000.00                 4,000.00         

Consolidated 2020 Budget Report for Phase 1 - July 2020

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 Phase 1 Page 4 of 12 14



39 Eviction & Collection Agent Fees -                        -                        -                  

40 HAP Expense (net fraud recovery to HUD) -                        -                        -                  

HAP Overfunding (Underfunding) -                        -                  

Maintenance Expenses -                        

42 Maintenance Payroll Expenses 56,096.83             43,881.25             43,881.25             96,166.00               96,166.00       

43 Casual Labor - Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

44 Maintenance Materials & Supplies 4,083.33               6,800.91               6,800.91               7,000.00                 7,000.00         

45    Plumbing Supplies -                        -                        -                  

46    Locks, Locksets & Keys -                        -                        -                  

47    Electrical Supplies -                        -                        -                  

48    Painting Supplies -                        -                        -                  

49    Cleaning Supplies -                        -                        -                  

50    Equipment Repair Parts -                        -                        -                  

51 Maintenance Contracted Services 5,250.00               8,608.69               8,608.69               9,000.00                 9,000.00         

52 Refuse Removal Services 729.17                  703.58                  703.58                  1,250.00                 1,250.00         

53 Plumbing Repair Services -                        -                        -                  

54 Heating/AC Repair Services 583.33                  319.00                  319.00                  1,000.00                 1,000.00         

55 Electric Repair Service -                        -                        -                  

56 Window Repair Service -                        -                        -                  

57 Automotive Repairs/Fuel -                        -                        -                  

58 Elevator Repair & Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

59 Pest Control Services 875.00                  -                        1,500.00                 1,500.00         

60 Cable TV -                        -                        -                  

61 Answering Service -                        -                        -                  

62 Misc Contracts -                        -                        -                  

63 Clean/Paint Units -                        -                        -                  

Utilities Expenses -                        

64 Water/Sewer 2,406.25               763.35                  763.35                  4,125.00                 4,125.00         

65 Electricity 437.50                  663.00                  663.00                  750.00                    750.00            

66 Natural Gas 291.67                  591.96                  591.96                  500.00                    500.00            

Other Operating Expenses -                        

67 Protective Services Contract -                        15,000.00             15,000.00             -                  

68 Insurance 9,290.75               9,582.53               9,582.53               15,927.00               15,927.00       

69 PILOT -                        4,006.69               4,006.69               -                  

70 Compensated Absences -                        -                        -                  

71 Collection Losses -                        -                        -                  

72 Replacement Reserves & Debt Pmt-Princ -                        -                        -                  

73 Other General Expense/Asset Mgmt Fees 11,790.92             5,145.81               5,145.81               20,213.00               20,213.00       

74 Casualty Losses - Non Capitalized -                        -                        -                  

75 Capital Expenditures -                        -                        -                  

76 Transfer In / Out -                        -                        -                  

Total Expense 148,401.17           158,618.96           158,618.96           254,402.00             -                  254,402.00     

Net Income/(Loss): 30,692.65             30,692.65             

Housing Authority's Portion of Net Income/(Loss): 3.07                      

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 Phase 1 Page 5 of 12 15



 LLC 

Phase 1

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Over (Under) 

Income

Dwelling Rent/Utilities 42,084.42    115,003.00       36.59% (72,918.58)         

Interest on Investments 180.67          20.00                 903.35% 160.67                

Other Income 147,046.52  140,000.00       105.03% 7,046.52             

HUD Admin Fees -                     -                      

HUD Grants/Subsidies -                     -                      

Total Income 189,311.61  255,023.00       (65,711.39)         

Expenses

 LLC 

Phase 1

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Under (Over) 

Administrative

Salaries/Benefits 43,431.14    67,771.00         64.09% 24,339.86           

Office Expenses 16,978.13    25,200.00         67.37% 8,221.87             

Office Contracted Services -                     -                      

Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd 2,142.92      4,000.00           53.57% 1,857.08             

Housing Assistance Pmts -                     -                      

HAP Payments Port In

Maintenance

Salaries/Benefits 43,881.25    96,166.00         45.63% 52,284.75           

Materials & Supplies 6,800.91      7,000.00           97.16% 199.09                

Maintenance Contracts 9,631.27      12,750.00         75.54% 3,118.73             

Utilities 2,018.31      5,375.00           37.55% 3,356.69             

Other Operating

Protective Services 15,000.00    -                     (15,000.00)         

Insurance 9,582.53      15,927.00         60.17% 6,344.47             

PILOT 4,006.69      -                     0.00% (4,006.69)           

Other Operating Expenses 5,145.81      20,213.00         25.46% 15,067.19           

Total Expenses 158,618.96  254,402.00       95,783.04           

Net Admin Income (Loss) 30,692.65    

Net HAP Income (Loss)

Total YTD Income (Loss) 30,692.65    

Housing Authority's Portion 3.07              

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

7/31/2020

Phase 1

16



YTD Actual Annual Board Approved Budget

Income Approved YTD Phase 2 Phase 2 Total Phase 2 Total
1 Dwelling Rental 81,667.83             77,368.00             77,368.00             140,002.00             140,002.00     

2 Excess Utilities -                        -                        -                  

3 Interest on Unrestricted Fund Investments 437.50                  386.09                  386.09                  750.00                    750.00            

4 Income - Transfer In from Other Funds -                        50,984.05             50,984.05             -                  

5 Other Income - Tenants -                        7,381.96               7,381.96               -                  

6 HAP Fraud Recovery & FSS Forfeitures -                        -                        -                  

7 Other Income - Bad Debt Collections -                        -                        -                  

8 Other Income - Laundry/Copy Fees/Misc -                        -                        -                  

9 Other Income - CFP  Operation Money -                        -                        -                  

10 Other Income - Sale of Asset Gain/Loss -                        -                        -                  

11 Admin Fees Earned - HUD -                        -                        -                  

12 Incoming Billable Admin Fees/Oper Sub 78,750.00             75,484.38             75,484.38             135,000.00             135,000.00     

13 ROSS/CFP Grant -                        

14 HAP Subsidy -                        -                        -                  

15 Operating Subsidy -                        -                        -                  

Total Income 160,855.33          211,604.48          211,604.48          275,752.00             275,752.00     

Expenses Approved YTD Phase 2 Phase 2 Total Phase 2 Total
Administrative Expenses

16 Admin Payroll Expenses 29,310.75             34,115.77             34,115.77             50,247.00               50,247.00       

17 FSS Coordinator Admin Salaries -                        -                        -                  

18 FSS Coordinator Admin Benefits -                        -                        -                  

19 Advertising & Marketing 29.17                    -                        50.00                      50.00              

20 Legal 1,166.67               70.00                    70.00                    2,000.00                 2,000.00         

21 Staff Training -                        -                        -                  

22 Travel -                        -                        -                  

23 Accounting Consultants 5,833.33               2,320.00               2,320.00               10,000.00               10,000.00       

24 Audit Fee 6,416.67               10,000.00             10,000.00             11,000.00               11,000.00       

25 Telephone -                        -                        -                  

26 Postage -                        -                        -                  

27 Office Supplies 87.50                    -                        150.00                    150.00            

28 Memberships & Publications -                        -                        -                  

29 Bank Fees -                        -                        -                  

30 Computer Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

31 Copier Expenses -                        -                        -                  

32 Office Equipment Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

33 Postage Machine -                        -                        -                  

34 Software Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

35 Outgoing Portable Admin Fees -                        -                        -                  

36 Sundry Administration/Compliance Fees 1,166.67               3,832.66               3,832.66               2,000.00                 2,000.00         

37 Port-In HAP Expense -                        -                        -                  

38 Management Fees 8,166.67               7,653.33               7,653.33               14,000.00               14,000.00       

Consolidated 2020 Budget Report for Phase 2 - July 2020

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 Phase 2 Page 7 of 12 17



39 Eviction & Collection Agent Fees -                        -                        -                  

40 HAP Expense (net fraud recovery to HUD) -                        -                        -                  

HAP Overfunding (Underfunding) -                        -                  

Maintenance Expenses -                        

42 Maintenance Payroll Expenses 45,693.08             42,871.40             42,871.40             78,331.00               78,331.00       

43 Casual Labor - Maintenance -                        -                        -                  

44 Maintenance Materials & Supplies 6,416.67               5,714.55               5,714.55               11,000.00               11,000.00       

45    Plumbing Supplies -                        -                        -                  

46    Locks, Locksets & Keys -                        -                        -                  

47    Electrical Supplies -                        -                        -                  

48    Painting Supplies -                        -                        -                  

49    Cleaning Supplies -                        -                        -                  

50    Equipment Repair Parts -                        -                        -                  

51 Maintenance Contracted Services 7,291.67               25,586.07             25,586.07             12,500.00               12,500.00       

52 Refuse Removal Services 2,041.67               523.78                  523.78                  3,500.00                 3,500.00         

53 Plumbing Repair Services -                        -                        -                  

54 Heating/AC Repair Services 700.00                  603.50                  603.50                  1,200.00                 1,200.00         

55 Electric Repair Service -                        -                        -                  

56 Window Repair Service -                        -                        -                  

57 Automotive Repairs/Fuel -                        -                        -                  

58 Elevator Repair & Maintenance 3,500.00               -                        6,000.00                 6,000.00         

59 Pest Control Services 875.00                  -                        1,500.00                 1,500.00         

60 Cable TV -                        1,758.17               1,758.17               -                  

61 Answering Service -                        -                        -                  

62 Misc Contracts -                        -                        -                  

63 Clean/Paint Units -                        -                        -                  

Utilities Expenses -                        

64 Water/Sewer 7,583.33               3,923.68               3,923.68               13,000.00               13,000.00       

65 Electricity 10,208.33             9,523.35               9,523.35               17,500.00               17,500.00       

66 Natural Gas 4,958.33               4,521.04               4,521.04               8,500.00                 8,500.00         

Other Operating Expenses -                        

67 Protective Services Contract 2,333.33               15,441.56             15,441.56             4,000.00                 4,000.00         

68 Insurance 5,178.25               5,343.80               5,343.80               8,877.00                 8,877.00         

69 PILOT -                        5,939.99               5,939.99               -                  

70 Compensated Absences -                        -                        -                  

71 Collection Losses -                        -                        -                  

72 Replacement Reserves & Debt Pmt-Princ -                        -                        -                  

73 Other General Expense/Asset Mgmt Fees 11,725.00             4,877.04               4,877.04               20,100.00               20,100.00       

74 Casualty Losses - Non Capitalized -                        -                        -                  

75 Capital Expenditures -                        -                        -                  

76 Transfer In / Out -                        -                        -                  

Total Expense 160,682.08          184,619.69          184,619.69          275,455.00             -                  275,455.00     

Net Income/(Loss): 26,984.79             26,984.79             

Housing Authority's Portion of Net Income/(Loss): 2.70                      

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 Phase 2 Page 8 of 12 18



 LLC 

Phase 2

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Over (Under) 

Income

Dwelling Rent/Utilities 77,368.00    140,002.00       55.26% (62,634.00)         

Interest on Investments 386.09          750.00              51.48% (363.91)               

Other Income 133,850.39  135,000.00       99.15% (1,149.61)           

HUD Admin Fees -                     -                      

HUD Grants/Subsidies -                     -                      

Total Income 211,604.48  275,752.00       (64,147.52)         

Expenses

 LLC 

Phase 1

Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Under (Over) 

Administrative

Salaries/Benefits 34,115.77    50,247.00         67.90% 16,131.23           

Office Expenses 16,222.66    25,200.00         64.38% 8,977.34             

Office Contracted Services -                     -                      

Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd 7,653.33      14,000.00         54.67% 6,346.67             

Housing Assistance Pmts -                     -                      

HAP Payments Port In

Maintenance

Salaries/Benefits 42,871.40    78,331.00         54.73% 35,459.60           

Materials & Supplies 5,714.55      11,000.00         51.95% 5,285.45             

Maintenance Contracts 28,471.52    24,700.00         115.27% (3,771.52)           

Utilities 17,968.07    39,000.00         46.07% 21,031.93           

Other Operating

Protective Services 15,441.56    4,000.00           386.04% (11,441.56)         

Insurance 5,343.80      8,877.00           60.20% 3,533.20             

PILOT 5,939.99      -                     0.00% (5,939.99)           

Other Operating Expenses 4,877.04      20,100.00         24.26% 15,222.96           

Total Expenses 184,619.69  275,455.00       90,835.31           

Net Admin Income (Loss) 26,984.79    

Net HAP Income (Loss)

Total YTD Income (Loss) 26,984.79    

Housing Authority's Portion 2.70              

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

7/31/2020

Phase 2

19



YTD Actual Annual Board Approved Budget

Income Approved YTD HCV HCV Total HCV Total

1 Dwelling Rental -                   -                     -                  

2 Excess Utilities -                   -                     -                  

3 Interest on Unrestricted Fund Investments 1,341.67          482.19             482.19               2,300.00         2,300.00         

4 Income - Transfer In from Other Funds -                   -                     -                  

5 Other Income - Tenants -                   -                     -                  

6 HAP Fraud Recovery & FSS Forfeitures -                   (10,945.57)       (10,945.57)         -                  

7 Other Income - Bad Debt Collections -                   -                     -                  

8 Other Income - Laundry/Copy Fees/Misc -                   22,021.82        22,021.82          -                  

9 Other Income - CFP  Operation Money -                   -                     -                  

10 Other Income - Sale of Asset Gain/Loss -                   -                     -                  

11 Admin Fees Earned - HUD 177,774.92       239,988.00       239,988.00        304,757.00     304,757.00     

12 Incoming Billable Admin Fees/Oper Sub -                   -                     -                  

13 ROSS/CFP Grant -                   

14 HAP Subsidy -                   1,596,069.00    1,596,069.00     -                  

15 Operating Subsidy -                   -                     -                  

Total Income 179,116.58      1,847,615.44   1,847,615.44     -                          307,057.00     307,057.00     

Expenses Approved YTD HCV HCV Total HCV Total

Administrative Expenses

16 Admin Salaries 106,004.50       73,812.02        73,812.02          181,722.00     181,722.00     

17 FSS Coordinator Admin Salaries -                   -                     -                  

18 Admin Employee Benefits 41,977.25        24,098.36        24,098.36          71,961.00       71,961.00       

19 FSS Coordinator Admin Benefits -                   -                     -                  

20 Advertising & Marketing -                   -                     -                  

21 Legal 145.83             140.00             140.00               250.00            250.00            

22 Staff Training 1,458.33          -                     2,500.00         2,500.00         

23 Travel 145.83             425.23             425.23               250.00            250.00            

24 Accounting Consultants 4,229.17          1,652.00          1,652.00            7,250.00         7,250.00         

25 Audit Fee 5,250.00          -                     9,000.00         9,000.00         

26 Telephone 3,927.00          712.55             712.55               6,732.00         6,732.00         

27 Postage -                   -                     -                  

28 Office Supplies 1,213.33          800.23             800.23               2,080.00         2,080.00         

29 Memberships & Publications 1,194.67          360.69             360.69               2,048.00         2,048.00         

30 Bank Fees -                   1,617.75          1,617.75            -                  

31 Computer Maintenance -                   -                     -                  

32 Copier Expenses 1,857.92          1,251.87          1,251.87            3,185.00         3,185.00         

33 Office Equipment Maintenance -                   -                     -                  

34 Postage Machine 1,168.42          2,197.03          2,197.03            2,003.00         2,003.00         

35 Software Maintenance 3,645.83          4,468.00          4,468.00            6,250.00         6,250.00         

36 Outgoing Portable Admin Fees -                   -                     -                  

37 Sundry Administration/Compliance Fees -                   5,541.58          5,541.58            -                  

38 Port-In HAP Expense -                   19,931.30        19,931.30          -                  

Consolidated 2020 Budget Report for Housing Choice Voucher - July 2020

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 HCV Page 10 of 12 20



39 Management Fees -                   -                     -                  

40 Eviction & Collection Agent Fees 700.00             -                     1,200.00         1,200.00         

41 HAP Expense (net fraud recovery to HUD) 1,671,861.92    1,709,937.39    1,709,937.39     2,866,049.00  2,866,049.00  

HAP Overfunding (Underfunding) -                   (124,813.96)     -                  

Maintenance Expenses -                   

42 Maintenance Salaries -                   -                     -                  

43 Casual Labor - Maintenance -                   -                     -                  

44 Maintenance Benefits -                   -                     -                  

45 Maintenance Materials & Supplies -                   -                     -                  

46    Plumbing Supplies -                   -                     -                  

47    Locks, Locksets & Keys -                   -                     -                  

48    Electrical Supplies -                   -                     -                  

49    Painting Supplies -                   -                     -                  

50    Cleaning Supplies -                   -                     -                  

51    Equipment Repair Parts -                   -                     -                  

52 Maintenance Contracted Services -                   -                     -                  

53 Refuse Removal Services -                   323.41             323.41               -                  

54 Plumbing Repair Services -                   -                     -                  

55 Heating/AC Repair Services -                   -                     -                  

56 Electric Repair Service -                   -                     -                  

57 Window Repair Service -                   -                     -                  

58 Automotive Repairs/Fuel -                   -                     -                  

59 Elevator Repair & Maintenance -                   -                     -                  

60 Pest Control Services -                   -                     -                  

61 Cable TV -                   -                     -                  

62 Answering Service -                   -                     -                  

63 Misc Contracts -                   -                     -                  

64 Clean/Paint Units -                   -                     -                  

Utilities Expenses -                   

65 Water/Sewer -                   -                     -                  

66 Electricity -                   -                     -                  

67 Natural Gas -                   -                     -                  

Other Operating Expenses -                   

68 Protective Services Contract -                   -                     -                  

69 Insurance 1,771.00          2,196.99          2,196.99            3,036.00         3,036.00         

70 PILOT -                   -                     -                  

71 Compensated Absences -                   -                     -                  

72 Collection Losses -                   -                     -                  

73 Replacement Reserves & Debt Pmt-Princ -                   -                     -                  

74 Other General Expense/Asset Mgmt Fees 2,508.33          2,316.34          2,316.34            4,300.00         4,300.00         

75 Casualty Losses - Non Capitalized -                   -                     -                  

76 Capital Expenditures -                   -                     -                  

77 Transfer In / Out -                   -                     -                  

Total Expense 1,849,059.33   1,851,782.74   1,851,782.74     -                          3,169,816.00  3,169,816.00  

Net Income/(Loss): (4,167.30)         

Consolidated Budget Report July 2020 HCV Page 11 of 12 21



 HCV YTD Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Over (Under) 

Income

Dwelling Rent/Utilities -                     -                      

Interest on Investments 482.19               2,300.00           20.96% (1,817.81)           

Other Income 22,021.82         -                     0.00% 22,021.82          

HUD Admin Fees 239,988.00       304,757.00      78.75% (64,769.00)         

HUD Grants/Subsidies 1,585,123.43   -                     0.00% 1,585,123.43     

Total Income 1,847,615.44   307,057.00      1,540,558.44     

Expenses  HCV YTD Actual  YTD Budget 

 Percentage of

Budget Used 

 Variance

Under (Over) 

Administrative

Salaries/Benefits 97,910.38         253,683.00      38.60% 155,772.62        

Office Expenses 11,250.03         30,110.00         37.36% 18,859.97          

Office Contracted Services 8,240.31           12,638.00         65.20% 4,397.69            

Oper Sub Transfer/Mgmt Fee Pd -                     -                      

Housing Assistance Pmts 1,709,937.39   2,866,049.00   59.66% 1,156,111.61     

HAP Payments Port In 19,931.30         0.00%

Maintenance

Salaries/Benefits -                     -                      

Materials & Supplies -                     -                      

Maintenance Contracts -                     -                      

Utilities -                     -                      

Other Operating

Protective Services -                     -                      

Insurance 2,196.99           3,036.00           72.36% 839.01                

PILOT -                     -                      

Other Operating Expenses 2,316.34           4,300.00           53.87% 1,983.66            

Total Expenses 1,851,782.74   3,169,816.00   1,318,033.26     

Net Income/(Loss): (4,167.30)          

Cash Flow Statement

Beloit Housing Authority

7/31/2020

Housing Choice Voucher

22



REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Agenda 
Number: 

4c 

Topic: 2018 Capital Fund Program Grant Budget Revision 

Date: September 23, 2020 

Presenter: Clinton Cole Division: Beloit Housing Authority 

Overview/Background Information

The HUD Capital Fund Program provides funds annually to Public Housing Agencies for the development, financing, 
and modernization of public housing developments; as well as for management improvements including staff 
training.

Key Issues

1. The Beloit Housing Authority is proposing to revise the 2018 HUD Capital Fund Grant budget in order to 
reallocate funds into the appropriate budget line item to allow for the purchase of maintenance vehicles. 

2. The maintenance vehicles purchased are intended to replace a 2002 GMC 2500 that is past its useful life, as well 
as a 2003 GMC Sierra that was disposed of as the result of an automobile accident in 2019. 

3. The BHA had budgeted funds for the purchase of maintenance vehicles, however HUD has provided new 
guidance which makes a budget revision necessary in order for the maintenance vehicle funding to be moved 
into the appropriate budget line item. 

4. A budget revision has been prepared to enable the BHA to utilize 2018 Capital Funds to fund maintenance 
vehicle purchases in accordance with HUD regulations.  We have moved $80,066 from line item 1480-General 
Capital Activity to line item 1406-Operations. This will not have a negative budgetary impact, as the funds are 
being transferred between line items. 

Conformance with Strategic Plan

Approval of this agreement would conform with the stated purpose of the following strategic goal:

 Goal #1 – Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods 

 Goal #2 – Create and Sustain a High Performing Organization 

 Goal #3 – Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth 

 Goal #4 – Create and Sustain a High Quality of Life 

 Goal #5 – Create and Sustain High Quality Infrastructure and Connectivity 

 Goal #6 – Create and Sustain a Positive Image, Enhance Communications and Engage the Community 

Sustainability

(If applicable, briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and natural 
environment.  Consider whether the policy of program will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels, reduce dependence on chemicals and other 
manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature, reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems, and/or meet the 
hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Write N/A if not applicable) 

N/A

Action Required/Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact

Revision of 2018 Capital Fund Program Grant Budget 

Attachments

Resolution 2020-13 and Revised 2018 CFP Budget

23



RESOLUTION 2020-13 

APPROVING THE BUDGET REVISION TO THE BELOIT HOUSING AUTHORITY’S 2018 
CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM (CFP) GRANT  

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority had prepared a 2018 Annual Statement and 
budget after receiving a $370,066 Capital Fund Program (CFP) Grant from the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development; 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority had budgeted funds for the purchase of 
maintenance vehicles that must be reallocated in order to remain in compliance with HUD 
guidance; and 

WHEREAS, the Beloit Housing Authority has prepared and will submit a revised 2018 
Annual Statement and budget in order to move $80,066 in Capital Funds from BLI 1480-General 
Capital Activity to BLI 1406-Operations in order to purchase the vehicles. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Beloit Community Development Authority 
Board of Commissioners approve the revised 2018 Capital Fund Program Grant Annual 
Statement and budget as presented. 

Adopted this 23rd day of September, 2020 

Community Development Authority 

Fransaesca Ellison, Chairperson 
Attest:

Julie Christensen, Executive Director

24



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report                                                                                                                     U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and               Office of Public and Indian Housing 
Capital Fund Financing Program                                                                                                                                                                                                       OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 06/30/2017 

Part II:  Supporting Pages 

PHA Name:  

Beloit Housing Authority

Grant Type and Number 
Capital Fund Program Grant No: WI39P0650118                         
CFFP (Yes/ No):       
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:       

Federal FFY of Grant: 2018

Development Number 
Name/PHA-Wide 
Activities  

General Description of Major Work 
Categories 

Development 
Account No. 

Quantity Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work 

Original Revised 1 Funds 
Obligated2

Funds 
Expended2

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Phase 1 Unit Turnover (Dwelling Unit-
Interior (1480) ) 

$10,000 $15,059.40 $3,270 $3,270 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Phase 1 Gutter Installation (Dwelling 
Unit-Exterior (1480) ) 

$28,000 $30,060 $30,060 $30,060 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Phase 1 Water Heater Replacement (non-
Dwelling Equipment – Expendable/Non-
Expendable (1480) ) 

$10,000 $12,940 $6,615 $6,615 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Phase 1 Ash Tree Removal (Dwelling 
Unit-Site Work (1480) ) 

$20,000 $10,000 $5,850 $5,850 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Dwelling Equipment – Phase 1 
Appliances (Dwelling Unit – Interior 
(1480) ) 

$13,533 $10,000 $2,289.70 $2,289.70 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Redevelopment 
Phase 1 

Phase 1 Flooring Replacement (Dwelling 
Unit-Interior (1480) ) 

$30,000 $30,000 $17,021.69 $17,021.69       

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Phase 2 –
Scattered Sites  

Dwelling Equipment – Appliances 
(Dwelling Unit – Interior (1480) ) 

$13,533 $10,000 $2,836 $2,836 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Phase 2 –
Scattered Sites  

Phase 2 Ash Tree Removal (Dwelling 
Unit – Site Work (1480) 

$10,000 $10,000 $8,150. $8,150 

25



WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Phase 2 –
Scattered Sites  

Phase 2 Scattered Site Water Heater 
Replacement (Non-Dwelling Equipment 
– Expendable/Non-Expendable (1480) )  

$10,000 $0 

WI064000004 – Beloit 
Apts. Phase 2 –
Scattered Sites 

Unit Turnovers (Dwelling Unit – Interior 
(1480) )  

$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 

WI064000005 Beloit 
Apts. – Phase 2 Parker 
Bluff 

Parker Bluff Carpet Replacement 
(Dwelling Unit – Interior (1480) )  

$7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 

WI064000005 Beloit 
Apts. – Phase 2 Parker 
Bluff  

Unit Turnovers (Dwelling Unit – Interior 
(1480) )  

$3,000 $5,000 $2,394.37 $2,394.37 

WI064000006 – Beloit 
Apts. Phase 2 
Townhouses 

Unit Turnovers (Dwelling Unit – Interior 
(1480) )  

$5,000 $5,000 $1,225.77 $1,225.77 

Not associated with 
any specific 
development 

Maintenance Vehicle Purchase (Non-
Dwelling Equipment-Expendable/Non-
Expendable 

$65,000 $0 

Not associated with 
any specific 
development 

Management Improvement 1410 
(Management Improvement 1408) ) 

$10,000 $14,801.56 $9,922.53 $9,922.53 

Not associated with 
any specific 
development 

1410 Staff Salary (Administration (1410) 
)  

$20,000 $6,283.11 $6,28311 $6,283.11 

Not associated with 
any specific 
development 

1406 Operations (Operations (1406) ) $60,000 $171,915.33 $60,459.97 $60,459.97       

Not associated with 
any specific 
development 

1410 Replacement Costs (Administration 
(1410) ) 

$50,000 $27,006.60 27,006.60 27,006.60 

1 To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report or a Revised Annual Statement. 
2 To be completed for the Performance and Evaluation Report. 

26



REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

Agenda 
Number: 

5a 

Topic: 
Consideration of Resolution 2020-14, Recommending Approval of the 2021 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Budget and 2021 Annual Plan 

Date: September 23, 2020 

Presenter: Teri Downing  Division: Community & Housing Services 

Overview/Background Information 

 
The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires each CDBG Formula Grantee to submit a 
Consolidated Plan every five years, and an Annual Action Plan each year.  Both Plans include specific objectives for 
housing, homelessness, public housing and community development and includes information on the CDBG process, 
affordable housing, and special needs populations.  The City’s Consolidated Plan for 2020-2024 was approved in 2019.  
 
The Annual Action Plan includes how the City intends to allocate its CDBG funds in over the next year.  The process for 
preparing the CDBG budget includes the following steps:  the Community Development Authority recommends and the 
City Council approves funding priorities, applications are available to agencies interested in applying for the CDBG 
funds; each applicant is required to present its application to the Community Development Authority (CDA); the CDA 
makes its recommendation to the City Council on how the CDBG funds should be allocated; a public hearing is held by 
the City Council; and adoption of the CDBG budget. 
 
On July 06, 2020, the City Council established the following local funding priorities:   

1. Public Service Programs that provide comprehensive case management services, with priority given to 
supportive housing programs, resource navigation, advocacy, education in life skills, job training, 
transportation, stable housing, and activities which meet one of the NRSA objectives.  

2. Code Enforcement 
3. Housing Rehabilitation 
4. Public Facility Improvements 
5. Fair Housing 
6. Economic Development – Microenterprise and Small business support 

 
On August 26, 2020, applicants requesting 2021 CDBG funds presented their applications to the CDA. October 1, 2020 
through October 31, 2020, the City will provide a 30-day public review of the 2021 Annual Action Plan and CDBG 
Budget.  On October 19, 2020, a public hearing will be held to give citizens an opportunity to comment on the proposed 
Annual Plan and CDBG budget.  On November 2, 2020, the City Council will take final action on the 2021 Annual Action 
Plan and CDBG budget.  
 
All recommended projects are consistent with the proposed 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan and will be incorporated into 
the 2021 Annual Action Plan which is submitted to HUD.  All recommended projects are eligible CDBG activities and 
meet one of the three national objectives. 
 

Key Issues 

 
1. Staff estimates a 2021 CDBG grant award of $630,000 and program income of $137,350. Therefore, the total 

2021 CDBG budget is estimated as $767,350. The attached spreadsheet provides recommended funding 
allocations based on the agencies’ requests and whether the proposed program meets the CDBG funding 
priorities.  The CDA recommendation will be listed when it is presented to the City Council during their October 
19th meeting and public hearing. 
 

2. Public Services: Cap = $119,647: The CDBG Budget spreadsheet lists the maximum funding level allowed for 
public services which is 15% of the 2021 grant plus 2020 program income.  We are recommending funding public 
service activities at the maximum level allowed. 
 
 

27



3. Planning and Administration = $133,224: Also reflected on the CDBG Budget spreadsheet is the amount you may 
award for planning and administration. This cap is limited to 20% of new grant funds, with a 20% overall cap of 
the total Program Year CDBG Budget. Therefore, we are proposing to fund program and administration with new 
CDBG grant funds of $114,091, $5,000 with prior year unspent funds, and $9,133 with program income. 
 

4. Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA) = $138,000: Staff recommends funding seven public service 
programs under the NRSA category. The Community Action Resources Navigator, Family Services’ Community 
Social Worker, Neighborhood Clean-up Events, ECHO’s Homeless Prevention Program, and NeighborWorks’ Direct 
Homeownership Programs are all continuations of current NRSA programs.  
 

5. Balance for Other Programming = $386,479: Staff recommends funding the remaining balance towards Code 
Enforcement, Housing Rehabilitation, and Economic Development as listed on the spreadsheet.  
 

6. Impact on City General Fund Budget: The following three activities have a relationship to the City of Beloit’s 
proposed Operating Budget or Capital Improvement Budget. Therefore, funding these programs below the 
requested amount would have an impact on the City’s Proposed Budgets. 

 
 The Code Enforcement/Inspection program provides funding for all or a portion of salaries and benefits for 

the four inspectors’ salaries and benefits.   
 
 The Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Program includes funding for two positions which are required to 

operate the program.   
 
 The Planning and Administration budget includes funding for several people required to operate the CDBG 

program.   
 

Conformance with Strategic Plan 

Approval of this agreement would conform with the stated purpose of the following strategic goal: 

 Goal #1 – Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods 

 Goal #2 – Create and Sustain a High Performing Organization 

 Goal #3 – Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth 

 Goal #4 – Create and Sustain a High Quality of Life 

 Goal #5 – Create and Sustain High Quality Infrastructure and Connectivity 

 Goal #6 – Create and Sustain a Positive Image, Enhance Communications and Engage the Community 

Sustainability 

(If applicable, briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and natural 
environment.  Consider whether the policy of program will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels, reduce dependence on chemicals and other 
manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature, reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems, and/or meet the 
hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Write N/A if not applicable) 

N/A 

Action Required/Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact 

If any of the City projects are funded at a lower level than proposed, there could be Operating Budget implications. 

Attachments 

Resolution 2020-14, Recommending Approval of the 2021 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Budget and 2021 
Annual Action Plan 

28



 

RESOLUTION 2020-14 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE 2021 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT (CDBG) BUDGET AND 2021 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires all local 
units of government that receive Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to submit an 
Annual Action Plan for each year that they receive CDBG funding, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Plan provides guidance on how CDBG funds will be allocated over the next 

year and how the City of Beloit intends to address its housing, public housing, homeless and 
community development needs, and 

 
WHEREAS, all CDBG-funded projects must be consistent with the Annual Action Plan and its 

overall goals and strategies. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Beloit expects to receive $630,000 in 2021 Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) funds and $137,350 in CDBG Program Income, and 
 
WHEREAS, all recommended projects are consistent with the 2020 - 2024 Consolidated Plan 

and 2021 Annual Action Plan, and 
 

WHEREAS, all recommended projects are eligible CDBG activities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Community Development Authority recommends 
approval of the 2021 Annual Action Plan and 2021 CDBG budget as identified in Attachment A, 
contingent upon the HUD award of CDBG funds to the City of Beloit. 
 

Adopted this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
 
Community Development Authority 
 
 
  
Fransaesca Ellison, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 

29



2021 Community Development Block Grant Budget

Revenue

2020    
Program 
Income

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2021 Program 
Income 

Anticipated 
 2021        CDBG 

Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation CDA Approval
A Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund 7,776$             350$                 -$                                $                        - 
B Code Enforcement -$                     -$                     
C Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund 157,369$         135,000$         
D NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region - Lending 2,500$             2,000$             
E CDBG Grant (Estimated) -$                     630,000$                   
F WWBIC Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund -$                     
G Fair Housing -$                     10,000.00$      

Total Revenue 167,645$         10,000$           137,350$         630,000$                    $            777,350  $                     - 

Allocations

Public Services

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
1 Beloit Meals On Wheels - Home Delivered Meals Assistance  $                     - -$                     9,000$                        $                9,000 
2 Community Action - Fatherhood Initiative  $                     - -$                     18,000$                      $              18,000 
3 Community Action - Rapid Rehousing  $                     - -$                     5,000$                        $                5,000 
4 Community Action - Permanent Supportive Housing  $                     - -$                     5,000$                        $                5,000 
5 ECHO - Rent Assistance and/or Utility Assistance  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
6 Family Promise - Emergency Shelter for Homeless Families  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
7 Family Services - Case Management for Homeless Survivors of Domestic Violence  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
8 HealthNet - Primary Care Medical, Dental, and Vision Clinic  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
9 Project 16:49 - Robin House Transitional Living Program  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
10 Retired & Senior Volunteer Program of Rock County - Beloit Senior Volunteers  $                     - -$                     7,647$                        $                7,647 
11 Stateline Boys & Girls Club - Operation Great Futures  $                     - -$                     5,000$                        $                5,000 
12 Stateline Literacy Council - Adult Literacy for Economic Prosperity  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
13 The Salvation Army - Supportive Services  $                     - -$                     10,000$                      $              10,000 
14 YWCA Rock County - Immigrant Outreach Program  $                     - -$                     -$                                $                        - 

Total Public Services -$                     -$                     119,647$                    $            119,647 
Public Service Cap 15%  $            119,647 

Difference  $                      (0) -$                     

Planning and Program Administration

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
15 Program Administration (No Application Needed)  $             5,000 9,133$             114,091$                    $            128,224 
16 Fair Housing Activities  $             5,000  $                5,000 

Total Planning and Program Administration 10,000$           9,133$             114,091$                   $133,224 -                        
Planning & Admin Cap 20% 126,000$                                  153,470 -                        

Difference 11,909$                      $              20,246 -$                     

Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area (NRSA) Activities

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
17 Community Action - Resources Navigator 50,000$                      $              50,000 
18 Community Action - Merrill Center 15,000$                      $              15,000 
19 Community Action - Merrill Community Clean-Up Event 3,500$                        $                3,500 
20 Community Action - Hackett Community Clean-Up Event 3,500$                        $                3,500 
21 Family Services - Community Social Worker 50,000$                      $              50,000 
22 ECHO - Rent Assistance: Homeless Prevention $8,000  $                8,000 
23 Neighborhood Housing Services - Direct Homeownership Assistance $8,000  $                8,000 

Total NRSA -$                     -$                     138,000$                    $            138,000 -$                     

Code Enforcement

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
24 Community Development Dept. - Code Enforcement / Inspection Program 18,337$           133,998$                    $            152,335 

Total Code Enforcement -$                     18,337$           133,998$                    $            152,335 -$                     

Housing Activities

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
25 Community Development Dept. - Housing Rehabilitation Program 109,880$         58,264$                      $            168,144 
26 Neighborhood Housing Services - Direct Homeownership Assistance 18,000$                      $              18,000 

Total Housing Rehabilitation -$                     109,880$         76,264$                      $            186,144 -$                     

Economic Development Activities

Prior Year 
Unspent CDBG 

Funds

 2020 PI 
Budgeted 

 2021
CDBG Grant 

Staff 
Recommend

ation

CDA 
Recommendati

on
27 WWBIC - Job Title: Business Owner -$                 -$                     48,000$                      $              48,000 

GRAND TOTALS 10,000$           137,350$         630,000$                    $            777,350 -$                     
Difference -$                     -$                     -$                          $                    -     -$                     

2020 Grant 2020 PI 2021 PI
Cap Calculation Formulas 630,000$         167,645$         137,350$         Subtotals Cap Percent Cap Limits

Pub Service Cap = (2020 Grant + 2019 PI) x 15% 630,000$         167,645$         -$                     797,645$                   15% 119,647$         
Total Planning & Admin Cap = (2020 Grant + 2020 PI ) x 20% 630,000$         -$                     137,350$         767,350$                   20% 153,470$         

Limit of 20% New Grant Funds towards Planning & Admin 630,000$         -$                     -$                     630,000$                   20% 126,000$         

30



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Executive Summary  

AP-05 Executive Summary - 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1. Introduction 

The mission of the City of Beloit’s CDBG Program is to assist those at risk of becoming homeless, create 

new jobs, retain existing jobs, assist low to moderate income people, assist special needs populations 

(such as public housing residents, elderly, homeless, and victims of domestic violence), increase 

property values, and improve the quality of the housing stock. Activities and programs will also serve to 

decrease the proportion of rental units, the unemployment rate, and help stabilize neighborhoods by 

keeping people in their homes or helping people secure homes.  

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   

This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to 

another location. It may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs 

assessment, the housing market analysis or the strategic plan. 

Housing Objectives: 

Develop a variety of housing alternatives in order to satisfy a wider range of housing needs by using 

existing programs and resources to improve Beloit’s older housing stock, support programs that enable 

homeowners to retain their homes, support the conversion of rental to owner-occupied housing in 

neighborhoods with unusually high percentages of rental properties, and promote homeownership.  

Public Housing Strategies: 

The Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) will work with NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region (NWBR) to provide 

homeownership opportunities for its residents.  

The BHA will work with community partners to provide volunteer opportunities for BHA residents and 

applicants, which exposes the extremely low income, low income, and moderate income households to 

opportunities to increase their job training skills, people skills, and self-sufficiency.  

The BHA will encourage extremely low-income, low income, and moderate-income families to utilize the 

least restrictive housing opportunities available to them. They have a choice of programs that include 

public housing, Section 8 rental assistance, Section 8 homeownership, and Family Self-Sufficiency.  

 

31



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Homeless Strategies 

The City will continue to support and strengthen the limited resources of agencies that provide services 

and facilities for homeless persons in the City of Beloit.  

The City will support a Resources Navigator through Community Action that will act as an access point 

for low-moderate income individuals, who will assist people with finding the resources that they need to 

be successful.  

The City will support a Community Social Worker position (Systems Navigator) through Family Services 

that will assist individuals in connecting to professional health care, mental health care, and/or longer 

term supportive services in the community.  

Objectives and Outcomes Continued 

Community Objectives 

 The City will continue its Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program to improve the City’s low to 

moderate-income neighborhoods. New underwriting guidelines and additional forgivable loan 

products that have been created and will be utilized in the NRSA areas. The City will continue to 

acquire, rehabilitate, and sell foreclosed homes to low-moderate income families through its 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP). The City will support a Resources Navigator position 

through Community Action that will act as an access point for low-moderate income individuals, 

who will assist people with finding the resources they need to be successful. The City will 

support individuals in connecting to professional health care, mental health care or longer term 

supportive services in the community. 

Anti-Poverty Strategy  

 The City will support programs that provide assistance to persons to increase their job skills and 

marketability. 

 The City will support non-profit organizations that provide assistance and advocacy for low to 

moderate-income residents by providing CDBG funds throughout the planning period. The City 

will support a Resources Navigator position through Community Action that will act as an access 

point for residents in the NRSA neighborhoods, who will assist people with finding the resources 

they need to be financially successful. 

Non-Homeless Special Needs Strategies and Objectives 

 The City will support programs such as Beloit Meals on Wheels and Retired Senior Volunteer 

Program to enable elderly and disabled residents to remain healthy and in their homes.  

32



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 The City will support public service programs that provide case management, client advocacy, 

and flexibility in order to tailor assistance to unique needs. The City will support a Community 

Social Worker position to connect residents in the NRSA neighborhoods with special needs to 

longer term health services and/or mental health services. 

3. Evaluation of past performance  

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or 

projects. 

The City has successfully funded and partnered with local non-profit organizations to address the most 

pressing needs in neighborhoods, housing assistance programs, property acquisition programs, code 

enforcement, and public infrastructure improvements. 

The City of Beloit provided CDBG funding to homeless programs and services that meet critical needs 

and has a staff member attend the monthly Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF) meetings. 

The City of Beloit provided housing rehabilitation loans to low to moderate income homeowners and 

landlords renting to low- moderate income tenants and supported NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region's 

first mortgage loan program, down payment assistance program, and homebuyer education program. 

The City of Beloit also supported the Retired Senior Volunteers Program and Meals on Wheels programs 

which help the elderly and disabled residents live independently and remain in their homes. 

The City finalized the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund, which provided loans to a for-profit 

business. In late 2019, the City of Beloit began discussion with WWBIC (Wisconsin Women’s Business 

Initiative Corporation), a non-profit focused on supporting businesses through-out Wisconsin. The Beloit 

Housing Authority has partnered with NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region over the past several years to 

provide training and education opportunities for its Family Self-Sufficiency and Homeownership Voucher 

program participants.  

The City continued its City-wide systematic code enforcement program wherein inspectors perform 

exterior inspections City-wide. The deteriorated and deteriorating areas were the low- and moderate-

income areas as defined by HUD. Those areas had the highest proportion of code violations, the greatest 

number of investor-owned properties, the greatest percentage of houses older than 50 years old, the 

lowest property values, and the oldest infrastructure.  

The City has funded Family Promise and the Domestic Violence Survivor Center which provides shelter 

to families experiencing homelessness.  The City also funded ECHO, which provides emergency rental 

assistance to households to prevent homelessness. In addition, the City provided funding to Community 

Action and Family Services for their Resources and Systems Navigator programs which provides direct 

assistance to families in need including security deposit, first month’s rent, utility assistance, or limited 

motel vouchers for those experiencing homelessness. 

33



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The City continued to purchase tax foreclosure properties from Rock County. Blighted properties are 

demolished and houses in better condition are rehabbed and sold to owner-occupants.  This program is 

primarily paid for with HOME, NSP and City CIP dollars.  

 The City has a program of evaluating streets to determine which streets should be reconstructed or 

resurfaced each year.  Other public improvements are made annually to upgrade the water system, 

parks, and other public facilities.  The City invests approximately $1.0 million in public improvements in 

our low-income areas each year.  This investment is made out of the City’s CIP budget. 

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  

Summary from citizen participation section of plan. 

The City of Beloit gave its citizens the opportunity to participate in an advisory role in planning, 

implementing, and assessing CDBG programs during the consolidated planning process.  Information 

about the goals of the CDBG program and the activities it funds was provided to all interested 

stakeholders.  Public meetings were held to gauge the views of citizens.  Public hearings were held to 

gauge the views of citizens.   

For the 2021 Annual Action Plan, the Community Development Authority (CDA) recommended 

establishing local goals at the June 24, 2020 meeting. City Council approved Local Goals at the July 6, 

2020 meeting. Two public hearings were held to give citizens and other interested parties an 

opportunity to give input on community development, housing, and homeless needs in the city. A public 

hearing was held before the CDA on June 26, 2020 and a second public hearing was held on July 6, 2020 

during the City Council meeting. A public notice of the hearings was published on the City’s website and 

in the Beloit Daily News on June 19, 2020. 

The CDBG budget process began when notices were published on July 7, 2020 on the City’s website, on 

July 17, 2020 in the Beloit Daily News, and July 22, 2020 in The Stateline News announcing that 

subrecipient applications were available.  A notice was also emailed to the CDBG mailing list on July 14, 

2020 notifying agencies and interested parties that applications were available. Anyone needing 

assistance with filling out an application, determining the eligibility of a project, or other CDBG 

assistance was helped.  

Applicants requesting 2021 CDBG funds presented their applications to the CDA on August 26, 2020. A 

public notice of the meeting was provided to the media and posted on the City’s website on August 19, 

2020. 

The CDA reviewed the Annual Plan and Budget on September 23, 2020 and recommended approval of 

both the plan and the budget.  A public notice of the meeting was provided to the media and posted on 

the City’s website on September, 16, 2020. 

34



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The City provided a 30 day public review of the Annual Action Plan and Budget from October 1, 2020 to 

October 31, 2020. A notice was published in the Beloit Daily News on TBD and in the Stateline News 

on TBD notifying the public of the 30-day public review period and that the plan and budget were 

available on the City’s website, at City Hall by request, and at the Beloit Public Library.  It also informed 

the public that a public hearing would be held on October 19, 2020 during the City Council meeting and 

that final City Council action would take place on November 2, 2020.   

On October 19, 2020 a public hearing was held to give citizens an opportunity to comment on the 

proposed Annual Plan and proposed 2021 CDBG budget.  Comments TBD. 

On November 2, 2020, the Annual Plan, and 2021 CDBG budget were reviewed and approved at a City 

Council meeting. 

5. Summary of public comments 

This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen 

Participation section of the Con Plan. 

TBD. None thus far 

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

All Comments were accepted.  

7. Summary 

The City of Beloit's 2021 Annual Plan was developed in order to address needs in the community. We 

believe that the objectives detailed above will allow us to assist homeless persons, those at risk of being 

homeless, to create new jobs, retain existing jobs, assist low-moderate income people, increase 

property values, improve the quality of the housing stock, and assist special needs populations such as: 

elderly/frail elderly, persons with disabilities, persons with drug or alcohol addictinos, public housing 

residents, veterans, and victims of Domestic Violence. Activities and programs will also serve to 

decrease the proportion of rental units, decrease the unemployment rate, and help stabilize 

neighborhoods by keeping people in their homes or assisting people secure housing.  

35



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies - 91.200(b) 

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 

The following are the agencies/entities responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of 

each grant program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

   

CDBG Administrator BELOIT City of Beloit, Community Development Department 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative 

The City of Beloit’s Department of Community and Housing Services is the lead agency for the CDBG program. During the preparation of the 

plan, the City of Beloit requested input from governmental agencies as well as public and private agencies providing health and social services in 

the community.  

The City of Beloit will continue to form new partnerships with local agencies and non-profit organizations. The City’s Continuum of Care System 

is coordinated by the Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF) which provides a comprehensive response to the needs to homeless individuals 

and families.  

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Ashley Rosenbaum 
100 State St.  
Beloit, WI 53511 
608-364-6738 
rosenbauma@beloitwi.gov 
  

36



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-10 Consultation - 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Beloit’s consultation was done during the Consolidated Planning process and was achieved 

through a variety of methods. These included three public steering committee meetings with attendees 

from various local service agencies, several public hearings, and comments from stakeholders and 

citizens alike. The City did not individually consult agencies during the Annual Plan planning process. 

However, the City of Beloit provides public noticing and holds a public hearing on the Annual Plan and 

Budget. The Annual Plan and Budget are discussed and approved at the public Community Development 

Authority (CDA) meeting, there is then a 30-day public comment period, a public hearing is held at City 

Council during the comment period, and then the City Council publicly discusses and votes on the 

budget and Annual Plan. There is a public participation item on the agendas for both the CDA and 

Council in which any person or agency representative can speak. The City has a listing of "CDBG Interests 

Parties" who receive mailed and/or emailed notices of all public meetings, and comment periods. The 

listing is of all local community organizations and any other organization or individual who has 

expressed interest in being on the list. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(l)). 

The City of Beloit's Housing Authority and Division of Community and Housing Services work closely with 

local non-profit organizations and County agencies to coordinate assistance in housing, mental health, 

and other service agencies. For example, the Housing Authority coordinates with Neighborworks to 

assist public housing and Section 8 residents with budgeting and homeownership education. They also 

provide referrals to various agencies that provide assistance with security deposits, landlord/tenant 

issues, home health care, and energy assistance. The Community and Housing Services Division provides 

referrals from the Housing Rehab Loan Program to local non-profits regarding minor home repair and 

credit education. In addition, the City is part of the Rock County Consortium which partners with the 

County Health Department on Lead Hazard Control and Health Homes. The Code Enforcement program 

provides referrals to the City's Housing Rehab Loan Program for repairs as well as to homeless shelters 

and agencies that provide motel vouchers when units are posted unfit for human habitation. Code 

Enforcement also works closely with the Fire Department, non-profits, and County mental health 

providers such as Family Services, the County's Aging and Disabilities Resources Center, and Rock County 

Long Term Support regarding cases of hoarding.  

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

37



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The City of Beloit works together with the Homeless Intervention Task Force (HITF) of Rock and 

Walworth County.  The HITF evolved from several city and county groups that had been meeting on the 

issue of homelessness in the area.  Members include representatives from public, non-profit, and for-

profit agencies.  Agencies that participate in HITF include: 

Community Agencies 

 Caritas 

 City of Janesville- Neighborhood Services 

 Community Action, Inc. 

 ECHO 

 Edgerton Community Outreach 

 GIFTS 

 House of Mercy 

 Legal Action of Wisconsin 

 Project 16:49 

 Rock County Human Services 

 Rock Valley Community Programs 

 The Salvation Army- Janesville 

 United Way Blackhawk Region 

 United Way 2-1-1 

 YWCA of Rock County 

 Beloit Agencies 

 Beloit Housing Authority (BHA) 

 Family Services 

 Family Promise of Greater Beloit 

 The Salvation Army- Beloit 

The HITF meets monthly to discuss strategies for addressing shelter and housing needs for homeless and 

low income persons.  The HITF originally met to discuss the implications of the North Rock County 

Homelessness Survey that was completed in 1993.  It was responsible for the subsequent Homelessness 

surveys completed in 1996 and 1999. It serves as the Continuum of Care for addressing homelessness 

and works to meet and identify needs. 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction’s area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate 

outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and 

procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

38



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The City of Beloit does not receive ESG funds.  However, there are agencies in the City of Beloit that do 

receive these funds and are part of the Continuum of Care.  Community Action and Family Services also 

receive ESG funds to assist in supportive services and emergency needs of participants.  Family Promise 

of Greater Beloit also receives ESG funds to assist with emergency housing for homeless individuals and 

families. 

2. Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process and 

consultations 

39



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Community Action of Rock & Walworth Counties, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

Representatives from CAI attended all three steering committee meetings. 

Community Action has been a long-time recipient of CDBG funds through the City 

of Beloit. As a result of this consultation, the City anticipates a continued successful 

partnership with Community Action. 

2 Agency/Group/Organization ROCK VALLEY COMMUNITY PROGRAMS, INC. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Health Agency 

40



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Public Housing Needs 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Economic Development 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

A representative from the agency attended all of the steering committee meetings. 

As a result, it is anticipated that agencies, groups, or agencies that were previously 

unfamiliar with RVCP will be able to utilize their services in the future. 

3 Agency/Group/Organization Yellow Brick Road Organization Inc 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Advocacy Group for LGBTAQ+ in Rock County 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

LGBTAQ+ 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

A representative from YBR attended one (1) of the steering committee meetings. 

As a newer agency to the Rock County community, it is anticipated that the 

organization will be able to share the resources with their clients that were 

previously unknown. This is also the only agency that attended the Steering 

Committee meetings that works exclusively with the LGBTQA+ community. As 

such, we are hopeful the City will be able to hear any housing/homelessness or 

community development concerns related to the LGBTQA+ community. 

41



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

4 Agency/Group/Organization YWCA OF ROCK COUNTY 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Services - Victims 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

Representatives from YWCA attended all three Steering Committee Meetings. An 

anticipated outcome of the consultation is that the City of Beloit recognizes the 

needs mentioned by the representatives and will be able to include them in the 

consolidated plan to be supported. 

42



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

5 Agency/Group/Organization SALVATION ARMY 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

One of the Captains from the Beloit Salvation Army attended all of the Steering 

Committee Meetings. It is anticipated that the Salvation Army will apply for future 

CDBG funding to expand the services they are already offering that closely 

correlate to the identified needs in the Beloit area. 

43



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

6 Agency/Group/Organization ECHO 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-homeless 

Food Pantry 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director of Echo attended the meeting regarding housing and 

homelessness. Echo currently receives CDBG funding for Beloit residents and it is 

anticipated that the City will be able to continue funding the program Echo 

provides as it closely correlates to the identified needs. 

7 Agency/Group/Organization Nami Rock County, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

44



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended the Housing and Homelessness Steering 

Committee Meeting. A recent trend we have witnessed in Beloit is that seeking 

assistance for mental health is becoming less stigmatized. Hopefully, as a result of 

NAMI becoming more well known in the Beloit area, service providers will be able 

to both refer and reference the services NAMI offers for their clients. 

8 Agency/Group/Organization CARITAS 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Food Pantry 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended all of the Steering Committee Meetings. As Caritas 

is one of the only food pantries in Beloit, it is hopeful Caritas will be able to apply 

for CDBG funding to expand their services, possibly with an emphasis on isolated 

seniors. 

9 Agency/Group/Organization Downtown Beloit Association 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Business Leaders 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Economic Development 

45



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

Housing Services staff met with the Executive Director of the DBA. We discussed 

the challenges businesses in downtown Beloit encounter as well as the challenges 

potential employees face. We anticipate being able to support efforts to establish 

micro-enterprise businesses in the area. 

10 Agency/Group/Organization City of Beloit, Public Works Department, Public Transit Division 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-homeless 

Public Transportation 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Public Housing Needs 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Economic Development 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

Staff from the Community Development Department met with the Director of 

Transit as well as the MPO organizer to discuss transportation needs identified 

during the steering committee meetings, limitations of the current system, and 

creative options to meet the needs. Being able to support effective marketing for 

transit (to dispel myths and outdated information) through CDBG funding is an 

anticipated outcome. 

11 Agency/Group/Organization City of Beloit - Economic Development 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Other government - Local 

Planning organization 

Business Leaders 

Civic Leaders 

Business and Civic Leaders 

Greater Beloit Economic Development Corporation 

46



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Economic Development 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The ED attended the Non-homeless Community Development meeting. As a result 

of their consultation, quality childcare was identified as a high priority for the 

working families of Beloit. 

12 Agency/Group/Organization Southwest Wisconsin Workforce Development Board 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Civic Leaders 

Workforce Development Corporation 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Economic Development 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The CEO attended the Non-homeless community needs steering committee 

meeting. They were able to provide information about the programs that are in 

place and gather intel regarding the type of programs City residents need. It is 

anticipated that SWWDB will fill in some of the gaps CDBG is not eligible to assist 

with. 

13 Agency/Group/Organization Rock County Human Services - Behavioral Health 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

Other government - County 

47



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Public Housing Needs 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Division Manager attended the Housing and Homelessness meeting. As one of 

the seemingly catch all agencies Beloit residents call in times of need, it is 

anticipated that Rock County Human Services will be able to direct clients to 

specific agencies in Beloit that they may have previously been unfamiliar with. 

14 Agency/Group/Organization City of Beloit - Community Development Department 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Service-Fair Housing 

Other government - Local 

Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program Specialist 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program Specialist attended the meeting 

regarding Housing and Homelessness. As a result, it is hopeful the loan program 

might be made more accessible and advertised even further to City residents. 

15 Agency/Group/Organization Stateline Literacy Council 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Education 

48



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Economic Development 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director of SLC attended the Non-homeless Community 

Development meeting. They were able to share the struggles non-native English 

speakers face in terms of obtaining gainful employment. A need for a "bridging" 

service was identified and will hopefully be supported by the City of Beloit through 

CDBG funding. 

16 Agency/Group/Organization Family Promise of Greater Beloit, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Strategy 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

A representative from FPGB attended the Housing and Homelessness meeting. 

FPGB, FKA Hands of Faith, has been a long-time recipient of CDBG funds through 

the City of Beloit. A previously identified need for emergency housing assistance 

was reaffirmed and it is anticipated that the City of Beloit will be able to continue 

funding the emergency housing program FPGB offers. 

49



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

17 Agency/Group/Organization HealthNet of Rock County, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

A representative from HealthNet attended the Non-homeless special needs 

meeting. One of anticipated outcomes of their attendance is an increased 

awareness of issues stemming from poor medical or dental care. 

18 Agency/Group/Organization AIDS Resource Center of Wisconsin 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

A representative attended the Non-Homeless Special Needs meeting. They were 

able to specifically share statistics regarding HIV/AIDS in Rock County and identified 

the actual needs for individuals living with either disease. As a result, the City of 

Beloit was able to prioritize the needs accordingly. 

50



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

19 Agency/Group/Organization Beloit Meals on Wheels 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services - Housing 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended the meeting on non-homeless special needs. 

BMOW has received CDBG funding from the City of Beloit and it is anticipated that 

the City will be able to continue supporting their mission. 

20 Agency/Group/Organization Retired & Senior Volunteer Program of Rock County 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 

Social Engagement/Senior Security 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

51



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended two (2) of the Steering Committee meetings. As a 

result of the consultation, the need for transportation has been identified. 

21 Agency/Group/Organization NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSING SERVICES OF BELOIT, INC. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Lending for LMI households 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended the Housing and Homelessness meeting. As a 

recipient of CDBG, its anticipated that Neighborhood Housing Services will 

continue to assist the residents of Beloit with their homeownership adventure. 

22 Agency/Group/Organization Family Services of Southern Wisconsin and Northern Illinois 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Education 

Services - Victims 

52



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

23 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director and program manager attended the steering committee 

meetings. As a long-time recipient of CDBG, it is anticipated that the existing 

partnership will continue to flourish and expand to support the City of Beloit's 

residents. 

23 Agency/Group/Organization United Way Blackhawk Region, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Service-Fair Housing 

Health Agency 

53



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

24 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director attended the housing and homelessness meeting. Although 

it is not anticipated that United Way will apply for CDGB funding through the City 

of Beloit, it is hoped that United Way will be able to fill in the gaps where the City 

of Beloit is unable to fund programs. 

24 Agency/Group/Organization Community Health Systems, Inc. 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Health 

Health Agency 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Economic Development 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

Representatives from the BACHC attended two (2) of the steering committee 

meetings. They were able to offer a unique perspective as one of the only 

healthcare providers in Beloit. As a result, service providers will be including 

healthcare providers in future conversations regarding homelessness and housing 

issues. 

54



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

25 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

25 Agency/Group/Organization Grinnell Senior Center 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

What section of the Plan was addressed by 

Consultation? 

Non-Homeless Special Needs 

Briefly describe how the 

Agency/Group/Organization was consulted. What 

are the anticipated outcomes of the consultation or 

areas for improved coordination? 

The Executive Director of Grinnell attended the Non-Homeless Special Needs 

meeting. The ED is new to their position so one of the anticipated outcomes is 

exposure to and awareness of the other existing service agencies in the City of 

Beloit. 

 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

The City of Beloit encouraged any and all agency types within the City of Beloit and surrounding communities that service Beloit residents.  

 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan 
overlap with the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care     

Table 3 - Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

 

 

55



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

26 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Narrative 

The City of Beloit has a good working relationship with all local agencies and governmental units.  Community development personnel regularly 

attend local and state meetings held by various agencies to keep lines of communication open.  Various agencies are contracted to provide 

CDBG funded public services.  The Community Development Department works with these organizations to ensure priorities are recommended 

based on actual needs. 

In addition to the community consultations listed above, the City of Beloit engaged in extensive community consultation during preparation of 

the NRSA Plan. The details of the consultations are outlined in the Plan. 

56



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

27 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-12 Participation - 91.401, 91.105, 91.200(c) 

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 
 

All meetings, application announcements, public comment periods, and public hearings regarding the Annual Action Plan are publicly noticed in 

the local newspapers, on the City's website, and the Plan and public notice are also sent to the Beloit Public Library. In addition, emailed notices 

are sent to an active CDBG mailing list the City maintains of CDBG interested parties, which is a listing of community organizations and any other 

organization or individual that may benefit from receiving CDBG funding or has expressed interest in being on the list.  

 Each year, the Annual Plan Process starts with setting local priorities at the June Community Development Authority (CDA) meeting. The CDBG 

Subrecipient Application is prepared to reflect those goals and is available to the public in mid-July. Applications are due in mid-August. Each 

Subrecipient Applicant is required to present their application and program proposals before the CDA during the August CDA meeting. Staff 

prepares a proposed CDBG Budget and Annual Action Plan which are presented at the September CDA Meeting, in which the CDA members 

discuss, sometimes make changes, and approve a recommendation for the City Council to consider. A 30-day public comment period typically 

runs from October 1 - 30. During the public comment period, a public hearing is held at the second Council meeting in October. City Council 

reviews the CDBG Budget and Annual Action Plan at its first meeting in November and approves the final subrecipient allocations. 

 

57



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

28 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Citizen Participation Outreach 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Public Hearing 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

June 24, 2020 CDA 

Meeting 

There were no 

members of the 

public that 

participated. 

Councilors and 

Commissioners 

only questioned 

technical aspects, 

such as how CDBG 

presentations will 

be handled with 

COVID (Virtually), 

the number of 

people involved in 

the public process, 

and the boundaries 

of the NRSA census 

tracts. 

All comments were 

accepted. 
  

58



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

29 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

2 Public Hearing 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

July 7, 2020 City 

Council Meeting 

There was one 

member of the public 

that participated 

although there were 

many members of 

the public that 

attended. 

The resident stated 

that he would be 

happy to be 

involved in 

providing ideas to 

assist with the 

homeless in this 

community and to 

help in screening 

people for the 

appropriate 

services. 

All comments were 

accepted. 
  

59



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

30 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

3 Newspaper Ad 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

The City received one 

email from a member 

of the public. 

Thank you for taking the time 

to read my comments. One of 

the barriers to permanent 

housing and employment is 

affordable childcare. Wisconsin 

has been in a childcare crisis 

for a long time and particularly 

in the time of Covid, safe and 

affordable childcare is critical 

for health and employment. 

Beloit would be in better shape 

if we had more people owning 

homes than renting. People 

can’t often afford to buy 

homes without steady 

employment and childcare 

costs can be huge. I would love 

to see the city call upon local 

employers to offer on site 

childcare or provide childcare 

credits to use in the 

community. I think we need to 

look at the barriers to home 

ownership and utilize private 

public partnerships to make a 

concerted effort to make home 

ownership in Beloit a 

possibility for all people. 

There’s more to helping people 

out of homelessness. We need 

to look at removing barriers to 

jobs like a ban the box 

initiative, providing affordable 

quality childcare, and provide 

better second and third shift 

transportation as well as 

possibly more public WiFi so 

we can level the playing field. 

Comment was 

accepted. 
  

60



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

31 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

4 

Public Workshop 

following 8-26-

2020 Meeting 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

CDBG Subrecipient 

Applications 

Presentation 

There were no 

members of the 

public that wished to 

participate 

N/A N/A   

5 Public Meeting 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

9/23/2020 CDA 

Meeting 

TBD TBD TBD   

6 Newspaper Ad 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

CDBG 

Subrecipients 

2021 CDBG 

Subrecipient 

Applications were 

submitted. 

All of the 

applications were 

accepted. 

N/A   

61



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

32 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

7 Internet Outreach 

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

Notice on City 

Website re: public 

hearing to identify 

needs and local 

funding goals 

None None N/A   

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach  

62



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

33 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Expected Resources 

AP-15 Expected Resources - 91.420(b), 91.220(c)(1,2) 

Introduction 

Each year funding is allocated to existing and new activities that meet the greatest needs, or can assist the most number of eligible individuals 

and/or households. The City's balance of Revolving Loan Funds is placed in the CDBG Budget each year as Program Income and is allocated to 

various projects within the budget. 

Anticipated Resources 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Remainder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: $ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public Improvements 

Public Services 630,000 137,350 10,000 777,350 0 

   

Table 5 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 
Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 

matching requirements will be satisfied 

 NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region uses HOME, NSP, Federal Home Loan Bank, and NeighborWorks funding to provide down payment 

63



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

34 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

assistance to households in the City’s targeted neighborhoods. 

 Community Action receives funding from a variety of state and federal sources for it Fresh Start program, including US Department of 

Labor Youthbuild; WI National & Community Service Board; The State of Wisconsin, Department of Commerce, Division of Community 

Development; American Recovery & Reinvestment Act; Community Service Block Grant; and the Wisconsin Employment & Training 

Assistance Program.  

 Community Action of Rock and Walworth County also received CSBG, SHP, ESG, and private donations to help support their Fresh Start, 

Fatherhood Initiative, HUB Teen Connection, HUB Transitional Living, and Skills Enhancement programs. 

 Community Action of Rock and Walworth Counties receives funding from United Way and the Job Center to continue the Fatherhood 

Initiative. This is a program which helps participants develop job skills to become gainfully employed while enhancing their parenting 

skills. 

 The Merrill Housing Initiative has received HOME funds from the Rock county HOME Consortium.  This program also receives funds 

through YouthBuild and other private and government sources. 

 The business community helps raise money for organizations such as Community Action, Project 16:49, and Stateline Literacy Council. 

 The Stateline United Way funds many of the social service agencies that are served by the City’s CDBG funds to meet critical needs. 

 Local churches provide funding to some organizations which assist homeless individuals such as Family Promise of Greater Beloit and 

Caritas. 

 Community Action and ECHO both receive ETH funding whish assists in supportive services and emergency needs of participants. 

 The City of Beloit utilizes HOME, WRRP, and local CIP funding in conjunction with CDBG for its City Housing Rehabilitation Loans and 

demolition. This keeps rehabilitation expenses at an affordable level for our LMI households and LMI housing providers. 

  The City of Beloit continues to use NSP grant and program income funding and local CIP funds to purchase and rehabilitate foreclosed 

properties in LMI Census Tracts. Completed homes are then sold to LMI households.  

 Meals on Wheels receives funding from the Older Americans Act. 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs 

identified in the plan 

N/A 

Discussion 

64



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

35 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

The following programs are being supported for NRSA related needs and activities.  

1. Family Services for Community Social Worker 

2. Community Action, Inc. for Systems Navigation 

3. NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region for Down Payment Assistance (Direct Homebuyer Assistance 

4. Code Enforcement Housing Rehabilitation Loan Program 

5. ECHO for Emergency Eviction Prevention Program 

6. Community Action, Inc. for Youth and Senior Programs at Merrill Community Center 

7. Community Action, Inc. for two neighborhood clean-ups in NRSA neighborhoods. 

65



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

36 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 

Goals Summary Information  

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Affordable Housing 2020 2024 Affordable 

Housing 

Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

H&H - Improve 

Housing Stock 

CDBG: 

$179,902 

Rental units rehabilitated: 10 

Household Housing Unit 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated: 10 Household 

Housing Unit 

66



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

37 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

2 Homeless Services 2020 2024 Homeless Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

H&H - Emer., 

Transitional, & 

Supportive Housing 

H&H - Long Term and 

Specialized Case 

Management 

H&H - Advocacy 

Services 

H&H - Eviction 

Prevention & Emer 

Rent Assistance 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - 

Transportation 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - Future 

Ready Skills 

CDBG: 

$89,012 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 115 Persons Assisted 

Tenant-based rental assistance / 

Rapid Rehousing: 75 Households 

Assisted 

Homeless Person Overnight 

Shelter: 100 Persons Assisted 

Homelessness Prevention: 115 

Persons Assisted 

67



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

38 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

3 Comprehensive 

Case Management 

Services 

2020 2024 Homeless 

Non-Homeless 

Special Needs 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

H&H - Emer., 

Transitional, & 

Supportive Housing 

H&H - Long Term and 

Specialized Case 

Management 

H&H - Advocacy 

Services 

H&H - Eviction 

Prevention & Emer 

Rent Assistance 

H&H Education in Life 

Skills, Rights, & 

Protection 

H&H - Diverse staff to 

provide 

resources/services 

Non-Homeless Special 

Needs - Elderly & 

Disabled 

Non-Homeless Special 

Needs - AODA Support 

Community & 

Economic Dev - Child 

Care/Literacy 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - 

Transportation 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - Future 

Ready Skills 

  Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 415 Persons Assisted 

68



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

39 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

4 Future Ready Skill 

Training 

2020 2024 Homeless 

Non-Homeless 

Special Needs 

Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

H&H Education in Life 

Skills, Rights, & 

Protection 

Community & 

Economic Dev - Child 

Care/Literacy 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - 

Transportation 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - Future 

Ready Skills 

CDBG: 

$68,282 

Public service activities other than 

Low/Moderate Income Housing 

Benefit: 350 Persons Assisted 

5 Improve Housing 

Stock 

2020 2024 Affordable 

Housing 

Homeless 

Housing - 

Improve 

Substandard 

Housing 

Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

H&H Education in Life 

Skills, Rights, & 

Protection 

H&H - Improve 

Housing Stock 

CDBG: 

$437,886 

Rental units rehabilitated: 10 

Household Housing Unit 

Homeowner Housing 

Rehabilitated: 10 Household 

Housing Unit 

Housing Code 

Enforcement/Foreclosed Property 

Care: 4000 Household Housing 

Unit 

69



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

40 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

6 Economic 

Development 

2020 2024 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

Census 

Tract 16 - 

Hackett 

Census 

Tract 18 - 

Merrill 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - 

Transportation 

Community & 

Economic Dev. - Future 

Ready Skills 

Community & 

Economic Dev - Small 

Business Support 

CDBG: 

$100,000 

Jobs created/retained: 15 Jobs 

Table 6 – Goals Summary 

 

Goal Descriptions 

 

1 Goal Name Affordable Housing 

Goal Description   

2 Goal Name Homeless Services 

Goal Description   

3 Goal Name Comprehensive Case Management Services 

Goal Description   

4 Goal Name Future Ready Skill Training 

Goal Description   

70



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

41 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

5 Goal Name Improve Housing Stock 

Goal Description   

6 Goal Name Economic Development 

Goal Description   

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

42 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-35 Projects - 91.420, 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

The City of Beloit's projects are grouped under five projects: Code Enforcement, Economic 

Development, Housing Rehabilitation, Planning-Program Administration, and Public Services. The Code 

Enforcement project includes both the City's citywide exterior inspection program and the interior 

systematic rental inspection program in our deteriorated neighborhoods. The Housing Rehabilitation 

project includes the City's Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund. The Planning-Program 

Administration project includes program administration as well as Fair Housing activities. The Public 

Services project includes activities that will be carried out by subrecipients which are individually listed 

in the table below. 

# Project Name 

  
Table 7 – Project Information 

 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

On June 24, 2020, the Community Development Authority approved the following local funding 

priorities in response to community input during the 2020-2024 Consolidated Planning process: 

1. Public Service Programs which focus on comprehensive case management strategies, with 

priority given to neighborhood stabilization activities, education in budgeting and life skills, 

stable housing, and employment training that corresponds with local employment 

opportunities. 

2. Code Enforcement 

3. Housing Rehabilitation 

4. Economic Development Activities, with priority given to Technical Job Training 

5. Program Administration 

6. Fair Housing 

  

One of the obstacles to meeting the underserved needs in Beloit is lack of adequate funding or other 

non-financial resources to adequately address a particular problem. Insufficient funding precludes the 

City from appropriately addressing every worthy project and often includes allocating funding at less 

than optimal levels. The City does not fund programs which duplicate the work of other programs. Non-

financial resource limitations include insufficient numbers of trained volunteers or staff to provide 

services.  

72



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

43 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-38 Project Summary 

Project Summary Information 

73



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

44 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution - 91.420, 91.220(f) 

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 

minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

CDBG funding will be provided to activities that serve low-moderate income persons city-wide. In 2017, 

two Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Areas were designated to focus on the two largest areas of 

both minority concentration and low-moderate income within city limits. The City will continue with 

these two NRSA plans through the 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan.  

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

Census Tract 16 - Hackett 8 

Census Tract 18 - Merrill 8 

Table 8 - Geographic Distribution  

 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

The City designated Census Tracts 16 and 18 for increased efforts for a variety of reasons. After a spike in deadly 

crime in 2014, city officials began to examine trends and patterns in crime and property deterioration to 

determine how to best address these growing issues. Although many of the incidents were city-wide, there was 

some obvious clustering of activities in Census Tracts 16 (Merrill) and 18 (Hackett). Additionally, these two 

neighborhoods have a greater proportion of investor-owned properties, substandard lots, and code violations than 

the City as a whole. The Hackett and Merrill neighborhoods also have the greatest number of older housing stock, 

lowest property values, and the greatest residential density. In order to actively combat these issues, that not only 

perpetuate other social and economic problems for residents but also drive away investors, the City is going to 

continue with the two designated NRSA plans through at least to the end of 2024. Although only two years have 

passed since the initial implementation, city officials, community leaders, and neighborhood stakeholders have 

already seen an improvement in the Hackett and Merrill neighborhoods.  

Discussion 

The City has developed various strategies to improve these neighborhoods, including partnering with 

non-profit organizations to provide public services, utilizing CDBG to address the housing stock 

problems, and coordinate with private organizations, groups, other city departments, financial 

institutions, and other community leaders to address issues the City may not be able to tackle with 

CDBG funding. 

74



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

45 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 
 

75



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

46 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing -91.420, 91.220(j) 

Introduction 

The City updated its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing in 2019, valid from 2020-2024. The report concluded that the City has historically, 

and continues to meet the goals of affordable and fair housing.  City staff will continue enforcement activity in 2021 although 2020 presidential 

leadership has determined that Analyses’ of Impediments are no longer required.  The City’s zoning and development regulations are 

comprehensive, progressive, and pose no barrier to affordable and fair housing goals for the City. 

The City coordinated with the City of Janesville and Rock County to contract with the Milwaukee Metropolitan Fair Housing Council (MMFHC) to 

conduct a regional Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing which was due in 2019. This AI was submitted with Beloit’s 2020-2024 Consolidated 

Plan. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such 

as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and 

policies affecting the return on residential investment 

The City plans has no such plans in 2021, as there are no policies in the City of Beloit that serve as barriers to affordable housing. However, the 

City has a NRSA for two neighborhoods in the City, which contains strategies for reducing high concentrations of rental units in both 

neighborhoods. These high concentrations contribute to deteriorating, crime, and instability which affect the return on residential investment. 

Discussion 

The City of Beloit will ensure that the affordable rental units are decent, safe and sanitary and meet local codes through its systematic rental 

inspection program.   

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for owner-occupants to maintain their homes, through the Housing Rehab Loan Program and 

NHS’s Homeownership Program. 

The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for landlords to upgrade their rental units through the Housing Rehab Loan Program, and Lead 

76



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

47 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Hazard Control Grant Program.  

The City of Beloit will also support efforts by others to rehabilitate current tax credit projects or develop new tax credit projects. 

The City will support services for legal advocacy with regard to housing issues. 

 

77



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

48 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

AP-85 Other Actions - 91.420, 91.220(k) 

Introduction 

The City submitted  NRSAs for two low-moderate income neighborhoods in the City which was approved 

on 9-21-2018.The NRSA has strategies that will work towards three main goals: Resident empowerment, 

neighborhood stabilization and revitalization, and public safety. Resident empowerment strategies will 

focus on employment and life skills training, increasing educational attainment, youth programming to 

reduce gang and criminal activity. The neighborhood stabilization strategy will focus on reducing the 

number of deteriorated and vacant/abandoned properties, encouraging resident involvement in 

neighborhoods, increasing owner-occupied units, and decreasing highly concentrated areas of rentals. 

The public safety strategies will include community policing, improving crime analysis, and increasing 

resident engagement. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

One of the key obstacles to meeting the underserved needs in Beloit is lack of adequate funding or other 

non-financial resources to adequately address a particular problem. Insufficient funding precludes the 

City from appropriately addressing every worthy project and often includes allocating funding at a less 

than optimal amount. The City does not fund programs which duplicate the work of other programs 

unless the activity is able to meet a high priority need.  

Non-financial resource limitations include insufficient numbers of trained volunteers or staff to provide 

expertise and support for programs and language barriers. The City will partner with the non-profits and 

others to consolidate resources. The City is part of the Rock County Homeless Intervention Task Force, 

which works to consolidate resources, financial and non-financial, to meet the needs of all of Rock 

County.  

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

 The City of Beloit will ensure that the affordable rental units are decent, safe and sanitary and 

meet local codes through its systematic rental inspection program. 

 The City of Beloit will support efforts by others to rehabilitate current tax credit projects. 

 The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for owner-occupants to maintain their homes. 

 The City of Beloit will provide financial resources for landlords to upgrade their rental units. 

 The City of Beloit will provide funding to NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region to assist with Direct 

Homeownership assistance and Low First Mortgage Program. In Beloit, oftentimes renting is 

more expensive than a mortgage payment. 

 

 

78



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

49 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

In 2020, the City will expand the $5,000 matching forgivable loan program to remove lead hazards. The 

program was originally created and offered only in the NRSA areas, but in 2021 will be expanded by 

offering the $5,000 program to property owners citywide, and increasing from $5,000 to $10,000 in the 

NRSA areas. This program can be used in conjunction with a Housing Rehabilitation Loan, which allows 

the owner to use the loan funds as match. 

The City of Beloit will explore opportunities to apply for Lead Hazard Control/Reduction Grant funds. 

Historically, the City has used these funds in conjunction with its housing rehabilitation funds. The lead 

funds are used for the lead elements to make the house lead safe, and then the housing rehabilitation 

funds are used for other rehabilitation work needed to bring the home up to minimum property 

maintenance standards. 

The City of Beloit Community and Housing Services Division requires all contractors hired through the 

Housing Rehabilitation Loan program to be certified lead safe, ensuring all work completed in project 

homes is performed in a lead safe manner and with lead-free replacement products. 

The City will continue to operate the Systematic Rental Inspection program.  Every rental unit in the City 

will be inspected at least once every five years by inspection officials who are trained to look for lead 

risk in all units, such as peeling and chipping paint. If violations are found, orders are written to 

correct the lead hazard, information is sent to the property owner  explaining how to fix the 

problem, Housing Rehab Loan information is also provided. If the property owner does not repair 

the hazard a citation may be issued.  

The City is currently developing a lead pipe replacement program in coordination with our Water 

Resources Division. This program uses local tax levy dollars for 50% repayable loans to assist 

homeowners with replacing the private portion of the water lateral to their homes. This program is 

regulated by the State and requires a minimum of 50% repayment of the loan. The Housing Rehab Loan 

Program staff will administer the program and offer additional loans or forgivable loans to residents 

through the existing CDBG Housing Rehab Loan Program for LMI residents who need more assistance. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

Through local partnerships, the City is increasing employment while educating citizens and providing life 

improvement skills.      

 The City will support programs that provide assistance to persons to increase their job skills and 

marketability. 

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue its Family Self-Sufficiency Program. 

 The Beloit Housing Authority will continue to provide homeownership opportunities to Section 8 

participants in cooperation NeighborWorks Blackhawk Region (NWBR). 

79



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

50 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

 The City will support non-profit organizations that provide assistance, job training, and advocacy 

to low- and moderate-income residents. 

 The Housing Authority requires all public housing residents to perform 8 hours of community 

service per month when the participating adult is unemployed.  By doing this, adults are learning 

new skills, acquiring self-confidence and opening doors for new opportunities. The Housing 

Authority offers case management to families which include budgeting classes, mentors, 

educational opportunities, and preferences with local employers.  

 Through local partnerships, the City is increasing employment while educating citizens and 

providing life improvement skills.    

Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

The City of Beloit will work with non-profits, public institutions and the private sector to implement the 

Consolidated Plan and Annual Plan.  The City will continue to utilize the Community Development 

Authority (CDA) for review of the Consolidated Plan, annual action plans, proposed CDBG funding and 

any CDBG budget amendments.   

Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies 

The City is an active participant in the Homeless Intervention Task Force.  In addition to HITF, the City 

has also become a participant in the B-FOCUS group. This group is composed of agencies focused in or 

on Beloit residents that delve deeper in homelessness and poverty issues than HITF has been able to in 

the past.  

The City also has a good relationship with Rock County’s Community Development and Health 

departments, and the City Manager meets with Rock County officials on a regular basis.   

In 2020, the City partnered with a non-profit agency, ACTS Housing to match qualified homebuyers to 

vacant or foreclosed homes.  

Discussion 

During 2019, the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing was completed by a contracted agency. The 

Request for Proposal was published on 7/9/2018 with a response date of 8/3/2018. The RFP was posted 

on the City's website, included in City press releases, and posted in NAHRO (online). Five agencies were 

also contacted directly. The Milwaukee Metropolitan Fair Housing Council was ultimately awarded the 

contract. Research was completed through-out 2019 and the draft was submitted to the City of Beloit by 

July 2019 for review. The Analysis will be valid from 2020-2024, at which time, a new analysis will be 

completed. The AI was finalized on October 07, 2019 after the following public processes: 

8-23-2019 through 9-23-2019 - Public Review Period 

80



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

51 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

8-28-2019 - Community Development Authority Review and Approval 

10-07-2019 - City Council Public Hearing and Final Approval 

A unique aspect for this analysis is that the contractors were able to separate the City of Beloit's data 

from the remainder of Rock County. They were also able to identify Beloit specific goals which are listed 

below:  

1. Create and Preserve Affordable Housing (Rental and For Sale) 

2. Create a Strong Fair Housing Enforcement and Outreach Program 

3. Improve Tenant and Housing Provider Communications 

4. Improve Transit 

5. Develop an Eviction Reduction Strategy 

6. Address Predatory Land Contracts 

7. Increase Access to Consumer Education 

8. Connect Black, Latino, and Other Underserved Populations with Life-improving Opportunities 

City Staff will work with the Equal Opportunities Commission to address the goals and strategies listed in 

the Analysis.  

 

81



 Annual Action Plan 
2021 

52 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 06/30/2018) 

Program Specific Requirements 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements - 91.420, 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction 

 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the 

next program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 156,912 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year 

to address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has 

not been included in a prior statement or plan 0 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 

Total Program Income: 156,912 

 

Other CDBG Requirements  
 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 

  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that benefit 

persons of low and moderate income.Overall Benefit - A consecutive period of one, 

two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall benefit of 70% 

of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate income. Specify the 

years covered that include this Annual Action Plan. 70.00% 

 
 
 

 

Discussion 

Prior year funds will be allocated in the 2021 CDBG budget.  

82



 

EPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

Agenda #: 5b 

Topic: 
Resolution 2019-24, Recommending Approval of the 2020 HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 
Budget 

Date: September 23, 2020 

Presenter: Julie Christensen Division: Beloit Housing Authority 

Overview/Background Information 

The City is a member of the Rock County HOME Consortium.  As a result, the City receives an annual allocation of Home 
Investment Partnership Program (HOME) funds.  The Consortium Agreement was amended in 2016 to allocate additional 
dollars to the City of Beloit. Starting in 2017, the City of Beloit receives 28 percent of the project funds.  In addition, 
the City also receives funds for administrative activities, which includes staff time to operate the program.  
 
Key Issues 

1. For 2021, we are estimating that the City of Beloit’s share would be $165,000, and the administrative share would 
be $18,265.  The City is planning to use up to $743,000 in prior year funds available for projects in the 2021 
program year as well as $268,000 in program income.  Although we intended to spend down HOME funds in 2020, 
COVID delayed a number of projects.  At this point, we have several projects which will be ready to go in 2021 or 
possibly in late 2020. 

2. Staff is recommending that the City’s dollars be used for owner-occupied rehab loans citywide and/or acquisition-
rehab and new construction projects in the Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Areas (NRSA).  A map of the two 
NRSA areas is attached.  These projects would be completed by either the City or by contract with one of the non-
profits. 

3. The Consortium CHDO funds are proposed to be split between projects in Beloit and Janesville, with all projects 
being completed by Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development (WHPD).  In Beloit, this would be a new 
construction project on one of our vacant lots.  We are proposing to fund $80,000 of the WHPD Beloit project with 
our available HOME funds. 

4. Staff is proposing to use up to $160,000 in these funds for owner-occupied rehab loans with the remaining balance 
to be used for acquisition-rehab and/or new construction activities. 

Conformance with Strategic Plan 

Approval of this agreement would conform with the stated purpose of the following strategic goal: 

 Goal #1 – Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods 

 Goal #2 – Create and Sustain a High Performing Organization 

 Goal #3 – Create and Sustain Economic and Residential Growth 

 Goal #4 – Create and Sustain a High Quality of Life 

 Goal #5 – Create and Sustain High Quality Infrastructure and Connectivity 

 Goal #6 – Create and Sustain a Positive Image, Enhance Communications and Engage the Community 

Sustainability 

(If applicable, briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and natural 
environment.  Consider whether the policy of program will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels, reduce dependence on chemicals and other 
manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature, reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems, and/or meet the 
hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. Write N/A if not applicable) 

N/A 

Action Required/Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2020-15. 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact 

All fiscal/budget impacts are noted in the report. 

83



 

Attachments 

Resolution and NRSA Maps 

84



 
85



 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-15 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF THE  
2021 HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM (HOME) BUDGET  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is expected to receive $165,000 in HOME Investment 

Partnership (HOME) funds for City projects and $18,265 for HOME Administrative Activities in 
2020, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Beloit estimates there will be up to $743,000 in prior year funds 

and $268,000 in program income available for City projects, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s owner-occupied housing rehabilitation loan program, acquisition-

rehab projects, and new construction projects are eligible HOME projects, and 
 
WHEREAS, Wisconsin Partnership for Housing Development (WPHD) has been awarded 

HOME Consortium funds as a Rock County CHDO for a new construction project in the City of 
Beloit, and there is a need for an additional $80,000 to complete the project, and 
 

WHEREAS, the recommended projects are consistent with the City’s Consolidated Plan. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Community Development Authority 

recommends that the City Council allocate up to $160,000 of available HOME funds to the City’s 
housing rehabilitation loan program for owner-occupied rehabilitation projects citywide, 
$80,000 to WPHD’s new construction project in a NRSA area, and the remaining funds for 
acquisition-rehabilitation and new construction projects in the Neighborhood Revitalization 
Strategy Areas. 
 

Adopted this 23rd day of September, 2020. 
 
 
    
 Fransaesca Ellison, CDA Chairperson 
  
ATTEST:       
 
  
Julie Christensen, Executive Director 

86


	Community Development Authority Agenda
	2018-2648 - Attachment
	2018-2622 - Attachment
	2018-2623 - Attachment
	2018-2624 - Attachment
	2018-2666 - Attachment
	2018-2665 - Attachment

